
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, October 4, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

1. Call to Order   
2. Roll Call  
3. Invocation and Pledge  
4. Announcements  
5. Approval of the Agenda  
6. Public Input  
7. Consent Agenda  

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held September 20, 2021 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 

8. ANX C2100043 and ZA C2100043: Allen Street Properties, LLC and B & K Turner Family, LLP have 
petitioned to annex into the city limits of Dawsonville the 70.808 acres (amended application) tract 
known as a portion of TMP 093 004 001, located at Perimeter Road, with a request to rezone from 
County Zoning of RSR (Residential Sub Rural) and RA (Restricted Agriculture) to City Zoning of R3 
(Single Family Residential).  Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on September 13, 2021 
and City Council on October 4, 2021.  City Council for a decision on October 18, 2021. 

 

BUSINESS 
 

9. Resolution – Georgia Cities Week, October 3 – 9, 2021 
10. Request to Ratify Opioid Litigation Document 
11. 2022 Meeting Calendar 
12. COVID-19 Vaccination Incentives for Employees 
13. Updated Fee Schedule  
14. FY 2021 Budget Amendments 
15. Dawsonville History Museum Board of Directors – Request Additional Directors 
16. Emergency Fire Flow Upgrade 
17. Maple Hill Drive Detention Pond 
18. Change Order – Allen Street Sidewalk  
19. Naming Public Road in City Hall Complex 
20. An Ordinance To Amend The City Of Dawsonville Code Of Ordinances Regarding Animals; Streets 

And Standards; Grading And Drainage; Zoning; Lot And Block Standards; Occupation Taxes And 
Miscellaneous Business Regulations; Buildings And Building Regulations; Stormwater Management; 
Fire Prevention And Protection; To Provide For An Effective Date; And For Other Purposes. (First 
Reading: October 4, 2021; Public Hearing, Second Reading and Consideration to Adopt: October 18, 
2021) 

 
     ADJOURNMENT   
 

 
 

The next scheduled City Council meeting is Monday, October 18, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe 
and/or participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should 
contact the Clerk at Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/04/2021     
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held September 20, 2021 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #       7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/04/2021     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 
 

• REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION HELD SEPTEMBER 20, 2021 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, September 20, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Eason called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm.   

2. ROLL CALL: Present were Councilmember John Walden, Councilmember Mark French, 
Councilmember Caleb Phillips, Councilmember William Illg, City Attorney Jonah Howell, City 
Manager Bob Bolz, City Clerk Beverly Banister, Public Works Director Trampas Hansard, Utilities 
Operation Manager Jacob Barr, Planning Director David Picklesimer and Finance Administrator 
Robin Gazaway. 
 

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE:  Invocation and Pledge were led by Councilmember French. 
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  None 
 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to approve the agenda as presented made by made by J. 
Walden; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

6. PUBLIC INPUT:  None 
 

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion to approve the consent agenda for the following items (a b,c,d,e) made 
by M. French; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held August 16, 2021 
• Executive Session held August 16, 2021 

b. Approve to Ratify Letter of Support to Dawsonville History Museum for Grant Funding 
c. Approve to Ratify Letter of Support to Chamber of Commerce for Grant Funding   
d. Approve 2022 Solid Waste Collection Contract with Red Oak Sanitation 
e. Approve Annual City Hall Closure for Mountain Moonshine Festival – Friday, 10/22/2021 

 

8. SAFETY GRANT FUNDS PRESENTATION:  Brenda Eckman from GMA awarded the City with the 
funds for the Worker’s Compensation and Liability safety grants. 
 

9. EMPLOYEE RECOGNTION:  The Mayor and Council presented Jacob Barr with the July 2021 
Employee of the Month award, Tony Seabolt with the August 2021 Employee of the Month award, 
Stan Zaverhuka with a three year service award, Steven McNeal with a three year service award and 
Jacob Barr with a ten year service award.  

 

10. AWARD ANNOUNCEMENT – CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT FOR EXCELLENCE IN 
FINANCIAL REPORTING FY 2020:  The Mayor and Council announced the City was awarded the 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for FY 2020.  This is the seventh 
consecutive year the City has received this award. 

 

BUSINESS 
 

11. 54th ANNUAL MOUNTAIN MOONSHINE FESTIVAL PLAN REVIEW:  Rhonda Evans spoke on 
behalf of Kare for Kids; presenting a current map and stating they have obtained permission from the 
surrounding property owners for use of the property.  She also stated the request from Dawson 
County Fire Chief Danny Thompson regarding the placement of cars has been resolved. She further 
stated they will abide by any restrictions in place by the Governor at the time of the festival regarding 
COVID-19.  She asked if Kare for Kids could take possession of the City Hall parking lot on Thursday, 
October 21st at 4:30 pm, set up tents on the distillery side of City Hall on Wednesday, October 20th, 
place small metal flags in Main Street Park to mark vendor spots starting on Monday, October 18th 
(this will be contingent upon cutting grass and weather) and setting the stage up on Wednesday, 
October 20th or Thursday, October 21st; Council agreed to all requests.  Councilmember Illg and 
Councilmember French both applauded Kare for Kids in their determination to accomplish everything 
involved with the festival and their commitment to the children of Dawson County.  
 

Tom French from Kare for Kids approached the Council and stated their insurance company has 
raised a concern about alcohol being served at the Georgia Racing Hall of Fame inside of their festival 
permit.  Mayor Eason asked him to obtain a letter from their insurance company to explain what they 
needed, and it could be addressed at that time.  Tom French made further inquiries regarding the 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, September 20, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

need to obtain the alcohol and servers permits, the type of insurance provided by the museum and 
alleged signs required to be posted.  Mayor Eason asked him to have his insurance company itemize 
these items in the letter.  Councilmember French requested the Council be copied on the letter. 
 

Rhonda Evans stated a concern about the Georgia Racing Hall of Fame serving BBQ and having a 
smoker in the vicinity of where they will have show cars placed.  Cindy Elliott confirmed the BBQ will 
be prepared in advance and not during the festival.   Tiffany Buchan voiced her concern that the 
museum should have been directed to obtain a vendors permit from Kare for Kids to serve BBQ.  
Mayor Eason stated he appreciated Kare for Kids coordination with all the parties involved and for all 
they are doing.  

 

12. BUDGET AMENDMENT – PREPARATION OF AN ESTIMATED BUDGET DOCUMENT FOR 
ELLIOTT FIELD AIPORT:  Motion to approve a $2,200 budget amendment from General Fund 
Reserves to prepare an estimated budget document for the Elliott Field Airport made by W. Illg; C. 
Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

13. APPALACHIAN REGIONAL COMMISSION (ARC) GRANT FOR DOWNTOWN STRATEGIC 
PLAN:  Motion to approve applying for a grant from the Appalachian Regional Commission (ARC) for 
the development of a Downtown Strategic Plan and to be assisted by the Georgia Mountain Regional 
Commission (GMRC) made by C. Phillips; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

WORK SESSION 
 

14. 2022 MEETING CALENDAR REVIEW:  The 2022 meeting calendar for all Boards and Commissions 
was presented; Council was encouraged to send any comments or questions to staff.  The calendar 
will be on the next agenda for approval.   
 

15. NAMING PRIVATE ROADS IN CITY HALL COMPLEX:  City Manager Bolz spoke to Council 
regarding naming the public road coming into the back of City Hall off Allen Street and the private 
road heading over to the City Hall Complex in front of Bojangles.  He is asking for recommendations 
to name the roads.  Councilmember Illg suggested naming the public road but not the private road. 
No other comments were made. 
 

16. COVID-19 VACCINATION INCENTIVES FOR EMPLOYEES:  City Manager Bolz presented a 
monetary incentive plan for employees to receive the COVID-19 vaccinations.  Each employee fully 
vaccinated and showing proof would receive $250.  Funding of the plan would be a combination of 
ARPA funds and excess revenue from the General Fund.  Councilmember French asked if the City 
would hold any liability should the vaccination be recalled.  Attorney Howell stated it’s a voluntary 
incentive and not something the City is compelling employees to do.  Councilmember Phillips asked 
if they could hold off on voting until legal has a chance to review the topic.  
 

17. MAPLE HILL DRIVE DETENTION POND:  Planning Director Picklesimer informed the Council 
regarding the requirement for the City to inspect all detention ponds.  During the process they found 
a detention pond on Maple Hill Drive that is located on two (2) homeowners’ properties in which the 
area is not part of an HOA.  He stated the property owners have requested the City to take over the 
maintenance of the detention pond and provided options the Council could consider.  The property 
owners spoke to Council:  

 

• James and Julie Morgan, 91 Maple Hill Drive – Julie Morgan asked if the City could take over 
the care of the detention pond stating when they moved there, they did not know they had the 
responsibility of the detention pond.  She does not have the funds to handle the maintenance. 
She also claimed the City has come before and cleaned it out.  James Morgan also stated he 
was unaware of their responsibility to maintain the pond and cannot afford to do so; again, 
asking Council to consider taking over the maintenance of it. 

• Allen Gravitt, 80 Maple Hill Drive – Allen Gravitt stated he cannot come up with the funds to 
maintain the pond and was unaware of this responsibility since the City has always maintained 
it.   

  



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, September 20, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

        Councilmember Illg asked how long they have lived in their homes; the Morgan’s have been there 
since 2003 and the Gravitt’s since 2017.  He also inquired when was the last time the detention pond 
cleaned out; they believed it to be around 2018 or 2019.  Councilmember Phillips stated he has 
asked legal to review the options to see how the Council can assist them.  Mayor Eason stated once 
it’s been reviewed by legal, the Council can decide on how to move forward.  

 

18. UPDATED FEE SCHEDULE REVIEW:  Finance Administrator Gazaway stated she has provided 
information for consideration of an increase to water and sewer rates in anticipation of the new water 
treatment plant.  She provided three options for an increase and is requesting feedback from the 
Council.  Planning Director Picklesimer also stated he is requesting fee increases to be in line with 
the County’s fees and added some additional fees the planning department has not been charging.  
Mayor Eason requested Council to review and stated historically the City has been behind with 
keeping up with fee increases.   

 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

19. BOB BOLZ, CITY MANAGER:  City Manager Bolz reported on one leak adjustment totaling $147.74 
His detailed report was provided in the packet.  No questions from Council. 
 

20. ROBIN GAZAWAY, FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR:  Financial reports representing fund balances and 
activity provided through August 31, 2021.  Mayor Eason asked about LOST revenue; Gazaway 
responded the City’s revenue is currently higher than expected. 

ADJOURNMENT:   
 

At 6:13 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by J. Walden; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  

 
 

                                                                               Approved this 4th day of October 2021. 
 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

         
         
              ___________________________________ 
   Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
   ___________________________________  
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 

 
         
   William Illg, Councilmember Post 2  

 
         
   John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
  
 
    
 
Attested: _________________________        
              Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 



                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:   ANX C2100043 AND ZA C2100043  _________________    
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/04/2021       
 

 

BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

 Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget: _____ Capital Budget: Other________  
 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____ Enterprise Fund: ____ General Fund 

 

 

PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:  PUBLIC HEARING  
 
ANX-C2100043 and ZA-C2100043: Allen Street Properties, LLC and B & K Turner Family, LLP have petitioned to annex 
into the city limits of Dawsonville the 70.808 acres (amended application) tract known as a portion of TMP 093 004 001, 
located at Perimeter Road, with a request to rezone from County Zoning of RSR (Residential Sub Rural) and RA (Restricted 
Agriculture) to City Zoning of R3 (Single Family Residential).  Public Hearing Dates: Planning Commission on September 
13, 2021 and City Council on October 4, 2021. City Council for a decision on October 18, 2021. 
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 

• First public hearing for the amended annexation and zoning application. 

• Amended application to annex and zone tract 2 with 32.937 acre only. 

• Amended concept plan reflects proposed 65 units. 

• Amended letter of intent request to approve 75 units yielding a density of 2.28 units per acre. 

• Applicant is requesting a variance to the Land Development Regulations Chapter 109 Sec 109-53-Sidewalks to eliminate 
the required sidewalk along Perimeter Road lots 58 thru 65. 

• Planning department has provided a revised timeline. 

• Planning department has provided a department summary with recommended conditions if approved.     
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS: No action required  
 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 

 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning_____________________________________________ _ 
 

REQUESTED BY: David Picklesimer_        __________________________________________  

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 8 
 















































































                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   RESOLUTION – GEORGIA CITIES WEEK, OCTOBER 3 – 9, 2021 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/04/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO READ AND APPROVE THE RESOLUTION FOR CITIES WEEK 
    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Sara Beacham, Event Coordinator______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   9    
 

 

 



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION R2021-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE  
RECOGNIZING GEORGIA CITIES WEEK OCTOBER 3-9, 2021  

 
 

WHEREAS, city government is the closest to most citizens, and the one with the 
most direct daily impact upon its residents; and 
 

WHEREAS, city government is administered for and by its citizens, and is 
dependent upon public commitment to and understanding of its many responsibilities; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, city government officials and employees share the responsibility to 
pass along their understanding of public services and their benefits; and 
 

WHEREAS, Georgia Cities Week is a very important time to recognize the 
important role played by city government in our lives; and 
 

WHEREAS, this week offers an important opportunity to spread the word to all 
the citizens of Georgia that they can shape and influence this branch of government 
which is closest to the people; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Georgia Municipal Association and its member cities have 
joined together to teach students and other citizens about municipal government 
through a variety of different projects and information; and  
 

WHEREAS, Georgia Cities Week offers an important opportunity to convey to 
all the citizens of Georgia that they can shape and influence government through their 
civic involvement. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that the City of Dawsonville declares 
October 3-9, 2021 as GEORGIA CITIES WEEK.  Be it further resolved that the City of 
Dawsonville encourages all citizens, city government officials, and employees to do 
everything possible to ensure that this week is recognized and celebrated accordingly. 
 
SO RESOLVED this 4th day of October, 2021. 

 
MAYOR AND DAWSONVILLE CITY  

 COUNCIL 
 
 

By:        
       Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

       
Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 

 
             
             
       William Illg, Councilmember Post 2 
 
             
             
       John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 
 
 
             
       Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED TO BY: 
 
 
       
Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk   

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   REQUEST TO RATIFY OPIOID LITIGATION DOCUMENT  
 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/04/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

   REQUEST APPROVAL TO RATIFY OPIOID LITIGATION LETTER AS RECOMMENDED BY KEVIN 
TALLANT AND REQUESTED BY BRINSON ASKEW BERRY, THE CITY’S OPIOID LITIGATION 
ATTORNEYS 

 
   DEADLINE FOR RESPONSE LETTER: SEPTEMBER 3, 2021. 
    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 
 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Mike Eason, Mayor______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   10     
 

 

 









                                           
 

 

     SUBJECT:                         2022 MEETING CALENDAR                   _ 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/04/2021       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
  
     TO REQUEST APPROVAL FOR THE 2022 MEETING CALENDAR 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
      

• PRESENTED AT THE 09/20/2021 WORK SESSION 
• NO REQUEST FOR CHANGES RECEIVED 

 
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
   
     
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
     APPROVE MEETING DATES AS PRESENTED   
 
 

 
          REQUESTED BY:   Beverly Banister, City Clerk_______________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   11   
 

 

 



 
2022 Meetings of the City of Dawsonville  

The City of Dawsonville City Council, DDA, Planning Commission and 
HPC shall conduct regular meetings on the dates and time below: 

 

2022 City Council Regular Meetings at 5:00 pm 
JAN 6     FEB 7     MAR 7     MAY 2     JUN 6 

     AUG 8     OCT 3     NOV 7     DEC 5 

2022 City Council Regular Meetings and Work Sessions at 5:00 pm 
   JAN 20   FEB 21   MAR 21   APR 18    MAY 16   JUN 20 
JUL 18   AUG 22   SEP 19    OCT 17    NOV 21   DEC 19 

2022 Planning Commission Meetings at 5:30 pm 
JAN 10   FEB 14   MAR 14   APR 11   MAY 9   JUN 13 

JUL 11   AUG 15   SEP 12    OCT 10    NOV 14   DEC 12 

2022 Historic Preservation Commission Meetings at 5:30 pm 
FEB 28   APR 25    JUN 27    AUG 29    OCT 24     DEC 13 

2022 Downtown Development Authority Meetings at 5:30 pm 

JAN 24   MAR 28    MAY 23    JUL 25    SEP 26     NOV 28 

All meetings according to the dates set forth above will be upstairs in the G.L. 
“Pete” Gilleland Council Chambers at City Hall located at 415 HWY 53 E, 

Dawsonville, GA. The public is invited to attend all of these meetings. 
 



January 2022 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

      1 
       

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
 City Hall Closed 

New Year’s Day 
Observed 

  City Council Regular 
Meeting 
  

  

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 
 Planning 

Commission 
     

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 
 City Hall Closed 

MLK Day 
 

  City Council Regular 
Meeting & Work 
Session 

  

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 
 DDA      

30 31      
       

 

DRAFT



February 2022 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

  1 2 3 4 5 
       

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting 
     

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 
 Planning 

Commission 
 

     

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 
 

     

27 28      
 Historic Preservation 

Commission 
     

       
       

 

DRAFT



March 2022 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

  1 2 3 4 5 
       

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting 
     

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 
 Planning 

Commission 
     

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 

     

27 28 29 30 31   
 DDA      

       
       

 

DRAFT



April 2022 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

     1 2 
       

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
 SPRING BREAK SPRING BREAK SPRING BREAK SPRING BREAK SPRING BREAK 

 
 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
 Planning 

Commission 
   City Hall Closed 

Good Friday 
 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
Easter Sunday City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 

     

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
 Historic Preservation 

Commission 
     

       
       

 

DRAFT



May 2022 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting 
     

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 
 Planning 

Commission 
     

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 

     

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 
 DDA      

29 30 31     
 City Hall Closed 

Memorial Day 
     

       
       

 

DRAFT



June 2022 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

   1 2 3 4 
       

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting 
     

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
 Planning 

Commission 
     

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 

     

26 27 28 29 30   
 Historic Preservation 

Commission 
     

       
       

 

DRAFT



July 2022 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

     1 2 
       

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
 City Hall Closed 

Independence Day 
     

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
 Planning 

Commission 
     

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 

     

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
 DDA      

31       
       

 

DRAFT



August 2022 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 
       

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting 
     

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 
 Planning 

Commission 
     

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 

     

28 29 30 31    
 Historic Preservation 

Commission 
 

     

       
       

 

DRAFT



September 2022 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

    1 2 3 
       

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 
 City Hall Closed 

Labor Day 
     

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 
 Planning 

Commission 
     

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 

     

25 26 27 28 29 30  
 DDA      

       
       

 

DRAFT



October 2022 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

      1 
       

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting 
     

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 
 Planning 

Commission 
     

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 

     

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 
 Historic Preservation 

Commission 
     

30 31      
       

 

DRAFT



November 2022 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

  1 2 3 4 5 
       

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting 
   City Hall Closed 

Veteran’s Day 
 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 
 Planning 

Commission 
     

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 

  City Hall Closed 
Thanksgiving 

City Hall Closed 
Thanksgiving 
 

 

27 28 29 30    
 DDA      

       
       

 

DRAFT



December 2022 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

    1 2 3 
       

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting 
     

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 
 Planning 

Commission 
Historic Preservation 
Commission 

    

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 
 

   City Hall Closed 
Christmas Eve 
Observed 

 

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 
 City Hall Closed 

Christmas Day 
Observed 

   City Hall Closed 
New Year’s Eve 
Observed 
 

 

       
       

 
 
 
 
 

 DRAFT



                                           
 

 

     SUBJECT:   COVID-19 VACCINATION INCENTIVES FOR EMPLOYEES  
   

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/04/2021    
   

 
 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:  
 
TO REQUEST APPROVAL TO FUND COVID-19 VACCINE INCENTIVES FOR CITY EMPLOYEES AT 
$250.00 PER EMPLOYEE VACCINATED.  
 
EMPLOYEE WOULD HAVE TO SHOW PROOF OF VACCINE BEFORE RECEIVING INCENTIVE FUNDS. 
 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES 
 
LEGAL TO PROVIDE OPINION ON VACCINE INCENTIVES 
 

PRESENTED AT THE 09/20/2022 WORK SESSION 
 

CDC, DPH, GMA, MANY OTHERS RECOMMEND TAKING MEASURES TO ENCOURAGE VACCINATION 
AGAINST THE COVID VIRUS. EMPLOYEES ARE CURRENTLY ALLOWED TO GET SHOTS ON WORK 
TIME. THIS WOULD ENCOURAGE EMPLOYEES TO GET VACCINATED FOR COVID. 
 

FUNDS NOT TO EXCEED $5,250.00 (21 EMPLOYEES X $250.00)   
• $100.00 PER EMPLOYEE ($2,100) TO BE REIMBURSED FROM ARPA FUNDS  
• $150.00 PER EMPLOYEE ($3,150.00) TO BE COVERED BY GENERAL FUND SURPLUS OR 

RESERVES. 
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
      

 
     REQUESTED BY: __Bob Bolz, City Manager________________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #____12_______ 
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   UPDATED FEE SCHEDULE  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/04/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT # N/A       

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO REQUEST APPROVAL FOR LEGAL TO DEVELOP AN ORDINANCE AMENDMENT TO IMPLEMENT 
RECOMMENDED FEE UPDATES FOR WATER AND SEWER RATES AND PLANNING AND ZONING 
FEES 

 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
• PRESENTED AT THE 09/20/2021 WORK SESSION 
• NO REQUEST FOR CHANGES RECEIVED 

 

• UTILITY RATES WERE INCREASED IN 2016 WITH PROPOSED ADDITIONAL INCREASE THE 
FOLLOWING YEAR WHICH DID NOT OCCUR 

• UTILITY RATES WERE INCREASED IN 2021 BY $1 FOR UTILITY DEPT. 
 
     

ATTACHMENTS PROVIDED:  10% INCREASE AND ASKING FOR A 3.5% INCREASE PER YEAR 
THEREAFTER.   
 

DETAILED LIST FOR PLANNING AND ZONING ALSO ATTACHED         

 

     OPTIONS: 
 

   APPROVE, AMEND, DENY 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION:  
 

STAFF RECOMMENDS P&Z RATE INCREASES AND 10% INCREASE FOR UTILITY SERVICE RATES. 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY: Robin Gazaway and David Picklesimer__________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    13     
 

 

 









 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:11 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 2-110. Fee schedule. 

The fees or charges provided for or required by the below listed sections shall be as shown below:  

 

b. Garbage fees:  

Garbage service regulatory fees within city limits:  
 14-134(a)(1). For licenses obtained prior to July 1 in any given calendar year, per customer  $ 6.00  
 14-134(a)(2). For licenses obtained after July 1 in any given calendar year, per customer  3.00  
License renewals and garbage deposits:  
 14-134(b). Renewal fee  6.00  
 14-142. Garbage security deposit  25.00    $60.00 

 



 (8)  Buildings and building regulations (chapter 102; appendix A-36):  

a. Residential/mobile home building permits.                    Current       Proposed 

Residential building permit Plat review fee  $50.00   

Residential building permit inspection fee  500.00 

Covered space building permit, per square foot  0.20  0.35 

Uncovered space building permit, per square foot  0.10  0.20 

Residential re-inspection fee  60.00   

Residential minimum permit fee  60.00  100.00 

Residential electrical/plumbing/HVAC mechanicals, per trade area when purchased with a building 
permit:  

 

 0—1,000 square feet, each  30.00   

 1,001—2,000 square feet, each  40.00   

 2,001—3,000 square feet, each  50.00   

 3,001—4,000 square feet, each  60.00   

 4,001 square feet and up + $10.00 for every additional 1,000 sq. ft., each  60.00   

Residential certificate of occupancy fee  40.00  50.00 

Generator permit inspection fee  100.00 

Accessory building permit inspection fee  200.00 

Sec. 2-110. - Fee schedule.  

Commercial plan review—Building permits:               Current   Proposed  

Commercial development permit fee  200.00  400.00 

1st site plan review, + $5.00 per lot   200.00   

2nd site plan review, + $5.00 per lot  100.00   

Commercial building plan review fee  200.00  1,000.00 



Covered space building permit, per square foot  0.20  0.35 

Uncovered space building permit, per square foot  0.10  0.20 

Commercial re-inspection fee  100.00   

Commercial minimum permit fee  100.00   

Commercial electrical/plumbing/HVAC mechanicals, per trade area when purchased with a building 
permit:  

 

 0—1,000 square feet, each  40.00   

 1,001—2,000 square feet, each  50.00   

 2,001—3,000 square feet, each  60.00   

 3,001—4,000 square feet, each  70.00   

 4,001 square feet and up, + $10.00 for every additional 1,000 sq. ft., each  70.00   

Commercial certificate of occupancy fee  100.00   

Commercial building permit inspection fee  530.00 

  

For required land disturbance permits and statutory fees associated with land disturbing activity, refer to 
subsection 2-110(10) below.  

c.  Other permits and fees:        Current        Proposed 

Demolition, flat rate (each structure)  50.00   

Swimming pool permit inspection fee  325.00 

Swimming pool (in-ground/private), per sq. ft.  0.20  0.35 

Swimming pool deck (aboveground/private), per sq. ft.  0.10  0.20 

Moved structures, flat rate  200.00   

Communication tower (new) permit fee:  500.00   

Communication tower (new) review fee:  200.00   



Minor plat review fee  50.00 

Communication tower (co-locate and repair), plus mechanical fees  250.00   

Stop work order administrative fee  100.00   

Stop work per day fine (residential and commercial)     50.00 

Work commencing before permit issuance, plus required permit fee  
100% of usual 
permit fee  

 

Retaining wall > 6 ft building permit   250.00 

Retaining wall >6 ft plan review fee  750.00 

Retaining wall > 6 ft inspection fee  200.00 

Residential building, commercial building, commercial development, residential 
development, swimming pool permit renewal fee 

 
1st 200.00 

2nd 400.00 

  

(9)  Signs (chapter 105):  

105-5(h). Sign permit fee  100.00  

105-8(c). Sign variance application fee  300.00  

105-40(b). Temporary sign permit fee, per month  30.00  

105-41(m). Banner over public property fee, per month, in addition to sign permit fee  50.00  

105-43(c). Banner in commercial district, per display period, in addition to sign permit fee  30.00  

Sign permit inspection fee 100.00 

  

(10)  Soil erosion and sedimentation control / Land development   (chapter 106):  

106-5(b)(3). Residential land disturbance permit fee, + statutory fee per acre  $200.00  

106-5(b)(3). Commercial land disturbance permit fee + statutory fee per acre  400.00  



Residential land disturbing activity statutory fee, disturbing less than one acre  No charge  

106-5(b)(4). Land disturbing activity statutory fee (residential or commercial), per acre of land-disrupting 
activity or any part thereof ($40.00 to city and $40.00 to state) 

40.00 RES 

40.00 COM 

Residential development preliminary and final plat plan review fee of $40.00 per lot for developments less 
than 50 lots and minimum fee $1,000.00 

 

Residential development preliminary and final plat plan review fee of $25.00 per lot for developments 
greater than 50 lots 

 

Commercial civil development plan review fee  $1,000.00 

Commercial as built civil development plan review 1,000.00 

Commercial land development permit inspection fee 500.00 

Residential development preliminary plat development fee $20.00 per lot with $200.00 minimum  

Residential development final plat development fee $10.00 per lot with $100.00 minimum  

Residential land disturbance statutory fee $40.00 per disturbed acre 40.00 

Residential land development permit inspection fee 500.00 

 

(11)  Stormwater management (chapter 107):  

107-57. Stormwater management permit application and plan review fee, per disturbed acre  $10.00  

 

(12) Zoning, variance, appeal, change of zoning condition and annexation requests (appendix A), certificate of 
appropriateness : 

a. The fee for all rezoning applications regardless of zoning category is the base amount set forth in the 
table below plus $50.00 per acre for each acre or part of an acre beyond one acre in the subject tract with a 
maximum fee of $5,000.00 regardless of the number of acres involved. 

b. Any required public notices to adjoining landowners shall be charged to the applicant at the current U.S. 
Postal Service rate in addition to the fees stated below. 

 



 

Current        Proposed  

Zoning Action Requested:   

AP  $250.00   

R-1  250.00   

R-2  250.00   

R-3  350.00   

R-3R  350.00   

R-6  350.00   

RHMT  250.00   

PUD  500.00   

TB  500.00   

PCS  350.00   

O  500.00   

CBD  500.00   

NB  500.00   

LI  500.00   

HB  500.00   

CIR  500.00   

INST  500.00   

RA  500.00   

Variance, per ordinance amendment 300.00   

Conditional use permit  300.00   



Appeals and change of zoning conditions  500.00   

Postponement, per occurrence  300.00   

Annexation, plus applicable rezoning fee  250.00   

Administrative fee, plus cost of all mailings  100.00   

  



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   FY 2021 BUDGET AMENDMENTS 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/04/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: ___Enterprise Fund    ___General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

   TO REQUEST APPROVAL OF VARIOUS BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2021 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

• BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR OVER/UNDER ENCUMBERED EXPENDITURES INCLUDE 
ACCOUNTS FOR   ALL FUNDS. 

• APPROVAL OF BUDGET AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO BALANCE BUDGET AND QUALIFY FOR 
THE FY 2021 CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT FOR EXCELLENCE IN FINANCIAL REPORTING  

 

     OPTIONS:   
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION:   
 
       APPROVE AMENDMENTS AS PRESENTED 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   14     
 

 

X 

 



Account Id Account Description Original Budget Actual 6/30/2021 Balance/Excess/D Revised Budget
100-0000-000000           GENERAL FUND                            0 0 0 AS AMENDED 6/30/2021
100-1100-000000           DEPARTMENT: COUNCIL                     0 0 0
100-1100-511000           SALARIES                                34,000.00 32,320.00 1,680.00 34,000.00
100-1100-512100           GROUP INSURANCE-HEALTH LIFE DEN   56,535.00 51,493.65 5,041.35 56,535.00
100-1100-512200           TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA                 2,600.00 2,157.30 442.70 2,600.00
100-1100-523200           COMMUNICATIONS - CELL PHONE             4,080.00 3,974.85 105.15 4,080.00
100-1100-523500           TRAVEL                                  1,000.00 0 1,000.00 1,000.00
100-1100-523700           EDUCATION & TRAINING                    1,000.00 1,035.00 -35.00 1,000.00
100-1300-000000           DEPARTMENT: MAYOR                       0 0 0 0.00
100-1300-511000           SALARIES                                17,000.00 16,080.00 920.00 17,000.00
100-1300-512100           GROUP INSURANCE-HEALTH LIFE DEN   60.00 41.40 18.60 60.00
100-1300-512200           TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA                 1,300.00 1,243.81 56.19 1,300.00
100-1300-523200           COMMUNICATIONS - CELL PHONE             1,020.00 967.53 52.47 1,020.00
100-1300-523500           TRAVEL                                  1,000.00 0 1,100.00 1,100.00
100-1300-523700           EDUCATION & TRAINING                    1,000.00 1,035.00 -35.00 1,000.00
100-1400-000000           DEPARTMENT: ELECTIONS                   0 0 0 0.00
100-1400-521203           PROFESSIONAL OTHER                      0.00 0 0.00 0.00
100-1500-000000           DEPARTMENT: ADMINISTRATION              0 0 0 0.00
100-1500-511000           SALARIES                                338,798.00 346,280.67 -7,482.67 350,000.00
100-1500-512100           GROUP INSURANCE-HEALTH LIFE DEN   117,948.00 102,670.03 15,277.97 117,948.00
100-1500-512200           TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA                 25,919.00 29,222.78 -3,303.78 30,000.00
100-1500-512400           RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS                19,800.00 19,588.97 211.03 19,800.00
100-1500-512700           WORKERS COMP                            1,500.00 3,394.00 200.00 3,594.00
100-1500-521200           PROFESSIONAL LEGAL                      85,000.00 105,622.54 -6,816.08 106,000.00
100-1500-521201           PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING                 19,000.00 13,043.34 5,956.66 19,000.00
100-1500-521203           PROFESSIONAL OTHER                      15,000.00 26,510.69 -11,510.69 15,000.00
100-1500-521300           TECHNICAL SERVICES (IT)                 15,000.00 11,534.65 3,465.35 15,000.00
100-1500-521315           TECHNICAL SERVICES-PAYROLL ACH          3,100.00 2,728.16 371.84 3,100.00
100-1500-522200           REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   4,000.00 9,729.24 -5,690.24 10,000.00
100-1500-522320           RENTAL EQUIPMENT OR VEHICLES            2,400.00 2,380.05 324.95 2,705.00
100-1500-523000           OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                15,000.00 26,545.00 -11,545.00 26,500.00
100-1500-523100           INSURANCE OTHER THAN EMPL               23,100.00 26,943.00 -3,843.00 30,000.00
100-1500-523200           COMMUNICATIONS                          10,000.00 11,351.60 -1,213.40 11,300.00

Page 1 of 7



100-1500-523300           ADVERTISING                             1,000.00 4,732.48 -3,676.23 5,000.00
100-1500-523400           PRINTING AND BINDING                    1,500.00 402.90 1,097.10 1,500.00
100-1500-523500           TRAVEL                                  4,000.00 836.77 3,163.23 4,000.00
100-1500-523600           DUES & FEES                             12,000.00 8,314.63 3,704.37 12,019.00
100-1500-523700           EDUCATION & TRAINING                    4,000.00 3,315.00 685.00 4,000.00
100-1500-523910           UNIFORMS                                300.00 631.00 -331.00 700.00
100-1500-531100           SUPPLIES                                18,000.00 63,342.49 -44,381.47 34,000.00
100-1500-531270           ENERGY-GASOLINE/DIESEL                  1,000.00 923.55 137.33 1,060.88
100-1500-531300           FOOD                                    2,500.00 1,152.80 1,347.20 2,500.00
100-1500-541000           CAPTIAL OUTLAY PROPERTY                 0.00 10,125.50 -10,125.50 0.00
100-1565-000000           DEPARTMENT: GENERAL GOV BLDG            0 0 0 0.00
100-1565-521300           TECHNICAL SERVICES                      2,000.00 9,206.15 -7,206.15 9,200.00
100-1565-522200           REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   43,000.00 69,968.98 -26,968.98 64,000.00
100-1565-531100           SUPPLIES                                22,000.00 26,662.35 -3,848.63 27,000.00
100-1565-531220           ENERGY NATURAL GAS                      8,000.00 7,812.42 750.84 8,563.26
100-1565-531230           ENERGY ELECTRICITY                      43,000.00 45,002.21 1,569.70 46,571.91

978,460.00 1,100,322.49 -99,333.79 1,100,757.05
100-3900-000000           DEPARTMENT: ANIMAL CONTROL              0 0 0
100-3900-523600           DUES & FEES                             500.00 100.00 400.00 100.00
100-3900-531100           SUPPLIES                                1,000.00 33.56 988.93 35.00

1,500.00 133.56 1,388.93 135.00
100-4200-000000           DEPARTMENT: ROADS                       0 0 0
100-4200-511000           SALARIES                                228,980.00 248,329.33 -19,191.13 229,138.20
100-4200-512100           GROUP INSURANCE-HEALTH LIFE DEN   74,970.00 67,471.27 7,498.73 74,970.00
100-4200-512200           TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA                 17,517.00 18,695.52 -1,178.52 17,517.00
100-4200-512400           RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS                3,300.00 4,235.71 -935.71 3,300.00
100-4200-512700           WORKERS COMP                            16,000.00 11,508.50 14,662.50 26,171.00
100-4200-521200           PROFESSIONAL LEGAL                      7,500.00 1,608.50 7,220.42 8,828.92
100-4200-521202           PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING                4,500.00 1,223.90 3,276.10 4,500.00
100-4200-521300           TECHNICAL SERVICES                      7,000.00 12,620.90 -5,620.90 7,000.00
100-4200-522110           GARBAGE SERVICES                        1,200.00 961.61 238.39 1,200.00
100-4200-522140           STREET SWEEPING/GROUNDSUP               12,600.00 13,500.00 900.00 14,400.00
100-4200-522200           REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   52,000.00 16,030.36 36,768.42 45,392.78
100-4200-523200           COMMUNICATIONS                          5,000.00 4,295.87 824.13 5,120.00

Page 2 of 7



100-4200-523400           PRINTING AND BINDING                    100.00 176.90 -76.90 100.00
100-4200-523500           TRAVEL                                  2,000.00 644.00 1,356.00 2,000.00
100-4200-523600           DUES & FEES                             1,500.00 1,865.02 -352.03 1,512.99
100-4200-523700           EDUCATION & TRAINING                    1,500.00 1,245.00 255.00 1,500.00
100-4200-523910           UNIFORM SERVICE                         2,500.00 2,161.62 600.13 2,761.75
100-4200-531100           SUPPLIES                                17,500.00 17,762.08 1,567.70 19,329.78
100-4200-531230           ENERGY ELECTRICITY                      40,000.00 45,291.82 -1,973.88 43,317.94
100-4200-531240           ENERGY BOTTLED GAS                      500.00 1,271.90 -771.90 500.00
100-4200-531270           ENERGY GASOLINE/DIESEL                  6,350.00 6,281.26 471.43 6,752.69
100-4200-531300           FOOD                                    0.00 140.00 -140.00 0.00
100-4200-541400           INFRASTRUCTURE-GDOT LMIG                35,000.00 72,991.75 -37,991.75 35,000.00

537,517.00 550,312.82 7,406.23 550,313.05
100-6200-000000           DEPARTMENT: PARKS                       0 0 0
100-6200-522200           REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   17,000.00 54,617.39 -37,617.39 54,000.00
100-6200-531100           SUPPLIES                                12,000.00 50,683.91 -38,274.63 50,000.00
100-6200-531230           ENERGY ELECTRICTY                       18,000.00 9,067.72 9,844.85 18,912.57
100-6200-541200           CAPITAL OUTLAY - SITE IMPROVEMEN        0 0 0 0
100-6200-542100           CAPITAL OUTLAY - PARKS                  0.00 367,686.96 -322,642.84 360,000.00

47,000.00 482,055.98 -388,690.01 482,912.57
100-7400-000000           DEPARTMENT: PLANNING & ZONING           0 0 0
100-7400-511000           SALARIES                                144,127.00 163,458.08 -19,331.08 165,000.00
100-7400-512100           GROUP INSURANCE-HEALTH LIFE DEN   36,168.00 44,243.69 -8,075.69 39,468.00
100-7400-512200           TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA                 11,026.00 12,297.99 -1,271.99 11,026.00
100-7400-512400           RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS                2,800.00 4,235.76 -1,435.76 2,800.00
100-7400-512700           WORKERS COMP                            0.00 4,088.00 -4,088.00 5,000.00
100-7400-521200           PROFESSIONAL LEGAL                      40,000.00 39,560.86 1,566.60 41,127.46
100-7400-521202           PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING                1,500.00 11,393.78 -4,134.03 12,000.00
100-7400-521203           PROFESSIONAL OTHER                      16,500.00 14,341.50 3,308.50 17,650.00
100-7400-521300           TECHNICAL SERVICES                      9,000.00 11,043.70 -2,043.70 9,000.00
100-7400-522200           REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   1,000.00 434.65 565.35 1,000.00
100-7400-522320           RENTAL EQUIPMENT                        1,400.00 3,804.06 -2,334.06 1,470.00
100-7400-523200           COMMUNICATIONS                          4,700.00 4,072.35 747.65 4,820.00
100-7400-523300           ADVERTISING                             1,250.00 1,448.86 -198.86 1,250.00
100-7400-523400           PRINTING AND BINDING                    100.00 288.40 -188.40 100.00

Page 3 of 7



100-7400-523500           TRAVEL                                  3,000.00 685.80 2,314.20 3,000.00
100-7400-523600           DUES & FEES                             2,250.00 2,619.87 -369.87 2,250.00
100-7400-523700           EDUCATION & TRAINING                    3,500.00 2,628.85 871.15 3,500.00
100-7400-523800           LICENSES                                400.00 530.00 -130.00 400.00
100-7400-523910           UNIFORMS                                1,000.00 608.99 391.01 1,000.00
100-7400-531100           SUPPLIES                                5,000.00 6,483.51 -1,336.87 6,500.00
100-7400-531270           ENERGY GASOLINE/DIESEL                  1,000.00 1,366.52 -312.92 1,353.60
100-7400-541400           CAPITAL - PROPERTY (VEHICLE)            0.00 0 0.00 0.00

285,721.00 329,635.22 -35,486.77 329,715.06
100-7500-000000           DEPARTMENT: DDA                         0 0 0
100-7540-572000           PMTS TO OTHER AGENCY (Chamber)          12,000.00 12,000.00 0.00 12,000.00
100-7550-531000           PMTS TO OTHER AGENCY (DDA)              17,500.00 25,000.00 -7,500.00 25,000.00

29,500.00 37,000.00 -7,500.00 37,000.00
GENERAL FUND Expenditure Total 1,879,698.00 2,499,460.07 -522,215.41 2,500,832.73

 
275-0000-000000           HOTEL/MOTEL TAX                         0 0 0
275-7540-572000           PMTS TO OTHER AGENCY (Chamber)          4,000.00 5,675.22 -173.65 5,675.00

HOTEL/MOTEL FUND Expenditure To 4,000.00 5,675.22 -173.65
 
285-0000-000000           DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHO        0 0 0
285-7500-000000           DDA EXPENDITURES                        0 0 0
285-7500-521200           PROFESSIONAL LEGAL                      2,000.00 3,424.81 -1,424.81 3,425.00
285-7500-521201           PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING                 1,200.00 0 1,200.00 0
285-7500-521203           PROFESSIONAL OTHER                      2,400.00 0 2,400.00 0
285-7500-523300           ADVERTISING                             200.00 0 200.00 0
285-7500-523700           EDUCATION & TRAINING                    1,200.00 0 1,200.00 0
285-7500-531000           FIREWORKS PURCHASE                      10,000.00 0 10,000.00 0
285-7500-531100           SUPPLIES                                500.00 0 500.00 0
285-7500-540000           GRANT DISBURSEMENTS                     25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 25,000.00

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHO    42,500.00 28,424.81 14,075.19 28,425.00
 
320-0000-000000           SPLOST VI FUND                          0 0 0
320-1000-541300           CAPITAL OUTLAY - CITY HALL ACQUIS   680,000.00 692,341.50 -439.25 691,902.00
320-4200-541400           CAPITAL OUTLAY - ROADS AND SIDEW     375,750.00 127,468.79 248,281.21 127,500.00

Page 4 of 7



320-4200-542000           CAPITAL OUTLAY - PUBLIC WORKS EQ 0.00 7,541.95 -7,541.95 7,500.00
320-4300-541400           CAPITAL OUTLAY - SEWER PROJECTS         0.00 0 0.00 0.00
320-4400-541400           CAPITAL OUTLAY - WATER PROJECTS         0.00 0 0.00 0.00
320-5400-740001                                                   0 0 0 0.00
320-5400-740002           TRANSFER TO WATER/SEWER FUND            0 0 0 0.00
320-5400-740003           TRANSFER W/S FUND                       0 0 0 0.00
320-6000-541000           CAPITAL OUTLAY - FARMERS MARKET         9,000.00 9,034.49 -34.49 9,034.49
320-6200-541200           CAPITAL OUTLAY - PARKS AND RECRE    0.00 63,396.90 -63,396.90 63,000.00

SPLOST VI FUND Expenditure Total 1,064,750.00 899,783.63 176,868.62 898,936.49
 

SPLOST V FUND Expenditure Total 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 
505-0000-000000           ENTERPRISE FUND                         0 0 0
505-4300-000000           DEPARTMENT: SEWER                       0 0 0
505-4300-511000           SALARIES                                148,701.00 138,598.28 10,102.72 139,000.00
505-4300-512100           GROUP INSURANCE-HEALTH LIFE DEN   42,528.00 40,604.82 1,923.18 41,000.00
505-4300-512200           TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA                 11,376.00 10,872.12 503.88 11,376.00
505-4300-512400           RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS                8,500.00 12,856.02 -4,356.02 8,500.00
505-4300-512700           WORKERS COMP                            6,500.00 6,009.24 2,045.76 8,055.00
505-4300-521200           PROFESSIONAL LEGAL                      3,000.00 3,544.32 -48.07 3,496.25
505-4300-521201           PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING                 12,000.00 13,043.33 -1,043.33 12,000.00
505-4300-521202           PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING                40,000.00 27,813.45 23,480.49 28,000.00
505-4300-521203           PROFESSIONAL OTHER                      15,000.00 12,188.23 2,889.27 12,000.00
505-4300-521300           TECHNICAL SERVICES                      14,000.00 12,118.95 1,961.05 12,000.00
505-4300-521315           TECHNICAL SERVICES: ENVIR MGMT          40,000.00 79,337.70 -34,983.20 44,354.50
505-4300-522110           GARBAGE SERVICES                        7,500.00 8,528.83 -1,028.83 7,500.00
505-4300-522200           REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   55,000.00 56,399.28 -1,399.28 55,000.00
505-4300-523100           INSURANCE OTHER THAN EMPL               12,500.00 14,264.33 -1,764.33 12,500.00
505-4300-523200           COMMUNICATIONS                          6,000.00 8,013.50 -1,950.18 6,063.32
505-4300-523215           POSTAGE / MAIL BILLS                    2,200.00 2,910.43 -710.43 2,200.00
505-4300-523300           ADVERTISING                             350.00 1,203.13 -853.13 350.00
505-4300-523400           PRINTING AND BINDING                    1,200.00 1,086.40 113.60 1,200.00
505-4300-523500           TRAVEL                                  1,000.00 100.00 900.00 1,000.00
505-4300-523600           DUES & FEES                             4,000.00 4,525.25 -525.25 4,000.00

Page 5 of 7



505-4300-523700           EDUCATION & TRAINING                    2,000.00 911.00 1,089.00 2,000.00
505-4300-523800           LICENSES                                100.00 0 100.00 100.00
505-4300-523910           UNIFORM SERVICE                         1,500.00 796.96 703.04 1,500.00
505-4300-531100           SUPPLIES                                30,000.00 20,121.86 10,431.00 21,000.00
505-4300-531230           ENERGY ELECTRICITY                      116,000.00 110,727.90 13,964.66 111,000.00
505-4300-531240           ENERGY BOTTLED GAS                      1,000.00 1,271.88 -271.88 1,000.00
505-4300-531270           ENERGY GASOLINE/DIESEL                  4,500.00 4,467.73 296.02 4,763.75
505-4300-531300           FOOD                                    1,000.00 190.00 810.00 1,000.00
505-4300-561000           DEPRECIATION                            428,000.00 322,911.96 105,088.04 370,000.00
505-4300-582104           INTEREST BOND 2014                      50,000.00 46,334.62 3,665.38 50,000.00
505-4400-000000           DEPARTMENT: WATER                       0 0 0 0
505-4400-511000           SALARIES                                148,701.00 138,748.29 9,952.71 148,701.00
505-4400-512100           GROUP INSURANCE-HEALTH LIFE DEN   42,528.00 40,604.75 1,923.25 42,528.00
505-4400-512200           TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA                 11,376.00 10,872.13 503.87 11,376.00
505-4400-512400           RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS                8,500.00 12,856.02 -4,356.02 8,500.00
505-4400-512700           WORKERS COMP                            6,200.00 6,508.99 1,246.01 7,755.00
505-4400-521200           PROFESSIONAL LEGAL                      4,000.00 8,617.83 -3,022.08 5,595.75
505-4400-521201           PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING                 12,000.00 13,043.33 -1,043.33 12,000.00
505-4400-521202           PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING                7,000.00 33,393.20 -21,965.93 11,427.27
505-4400-521203           PROFESSIONAL OTHER                      5,000.00 18,998.11 -13,998.11 5,000.00
505-4400-521300           TECHNICAL SERVICES                      12,000.00 11,068.95 2,534.18 13,603.13
505-4400-522110           GARBAGE SERVICES                        1,000.00 1,405.56 -405.56 1,000.00
505-4400-522200           REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   25,000.00 51,127.37 -26,127.37 25,000.00
505-4400-522320           RENTAL EQUIP. OR VEHICLES               1,200.00 1,380.15 95.88 1,476.03
505-4400-523100           INSURANCE OTHER THAN EMPL               13,000.00 14,264.33 -1,264.33 13,000.00
505-4400-523200           COMMUNICATIONS                          8,000.00 8,104.12 -23.07 8,081.05
505-4400-523215           POSTAGE / MAIL BILLS                    2,200.00 2,910.44 -710.44 2,200.00
505-4400-523300           ADVERTISING                             650.00 1,254.58 -604.58 650.00
505-4400-523400           PRINTING AND BINDING                    1,100.00 1,086.40 13.60 1,100.00
505-4400-523500           TRAVEL                                  1,000.00 100.00 900.00 1,000.00
505-4400-523600           DUES & FEES                             12,000.00 8,990.68 3,009.32 12,000.00
505-4400-523700           EDUCATION & TRAINING                    4,000.00 1,187.00 2,813.00 4,000.00
505-4400-523800           LICENSES                                500.00 0 500.00 500.00
505-4400-523910           UNIFORM SERVICE                         1,500.00 796.94 703.06 1,500.00

Page 6 of 7



505-4400-531100           SUPPLIES                                45,000.00 64,731.13 -19,107.89 45,623.24
505-4400-531115           SUPPLIES: CHEMICALS WATER               32,500.00 30,162.98 6,083.94 36,246.92
505-4400-531230           ENERGY ELECTRICITY                      18,000.00 21,129.67 -2,422.13 18,707.54
505-4400-531240           ENERGY BOTTLED GAS                      950.00 1,271.88 -321.88 950.00
505-4400-531270           ENERGY GASOLINE/DIESEL                  4,500.00 3,847.57 916.18 4,763.75
505-4400-531300           FOOD                                    1,000.00 90.00 910.00 1,000.00
505-4400-561000           DEPRECIATION                            146,000.00 90,104.04 55,895.96 146,000.00
505-4400-582104           INTEREST BOND 2014                      37,450.00 37,268.65 181.35 37,450.00
505-5400-750002           SPLOST TRANSFER                         0 0 0 0

ENTERPRISE FUND Expenditure Tota 1,679,310.00 1,597,676.61 123,942.75 1,600,693.50
 
530-0000-000000           CAPITAL OUTLAY                          0 0 0 29,505
530-4300-541400           CAPITAL OUTLAY - SEWER                  800,000.00 165,461.14 634,538.86 167,000.00
530-4400-541400           CAPITAL OUTLAY - WATER                  200,000.00 334,820.50 -1,038.00 334,000.00

ENTERPRISE PROJECTS FUND Expend  1,000,000.00 500,281.64 633,500.86 530,505
 
540-0000-000000           SOLID WASTE & RECYCLING                 0 0 0
540-4310-000000           DEPARTMENT: GARBAGE                     0 0 0
540-4310-522110           GARBAGE SERVICES                        173,946.00 189,392.10 -15,446.10 190,000.00
540-4310-523300           ADVERTISING                             200.00 0 200.00 0
540-4310-531100           SUPPLIES                                29,354.00 30,645.00 -1,291.00 31,000.00

GARBAGE FUND Expenditure Total 203,500.00 220,037.10 -16,537.10 221,000.00
 2,352,198.50
790-0000-000000           CEMETERY                                0 0 0
790-4950-000000           DEPARTMENT: CEMETERY                    0 0 0
790-4950-521202           PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING                0.00 0 0.00
790-4950-522200           REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   11,000.00 5,160.00 6,270.00 5,200.00
790-4950-523600           DUES & FEES                             200.00 275.00 -75.00 275.00
790-4950-531100           SUPPLIES                                6,800.00 0 6,800.00 0
790-4950-542500           CAP. OUTLAY OTHER EQUIPMT               0.00 0 0.00 0

CEMETARY FUND Expenditure Total 18,000.00 5,435.00 12,995.00 5,475.00
 
 

Changed line items

Page 7 of 7



Current Prior Year
Original Project Project Current Percent

Project Budget Budget to Date Year Total Complete

SPLOST # 6

     Road, Streets, Bridges and Sidewalks 1,250,000$          1,250,000$    504,738$       127,469$       632,207$       50.58%
     Water and Sewer Projects 2,750,000            750,000         313,313         -                     313,313         41.78%
     Park and Recreation Facilities 2,250,000            2,706,657      2,373,125      63,397           2,436,522      90.02%
     Farmers Market Facility 1,000,000            1,127,199      1,071,402      9,034             1,080,436      95.85%
     Public Works Facility and Equipment 400,000               400,000         284,559         7,542             292,101         73.03%
     City Hall Acquisition 2,000,000            2,000,000      1,346,856      692,342         2,039,198      101.96%

             Total All SPLOST Projects 9,650,000$          8,233,856$    5,893,993$    899,784$       6,793,777$    82.51%

Left to spend
Budget revision 1,250,000$          1,328,391$    504,738$       127,469$       632,207$       696,184.00    

2,750,000            350,000         313,313         -                     313,313         33,500.00      
2,250,000            2,450,000      2,373,125      63,397           2,436,522      13,000.00      
1,000,000            1,138,186      1,071,402      9,034             1,080,436      57,750.00      

400,000               342,000         284,559         7,542             292,101         49,900.00      
2,000,000            2,039,200      1,346,856      692,342         2,039,198      -                 

9,650,000$          7,647,777$    5,893,993$    899,784$       6,793,777$    850,334.00    

FDR, Paving 351,735.04    
Allen St sidewalk 190,244.50    
Carter Property 57,750.00      
PW truck 49,900.00      

649,629.54    



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM BOARD OF DIRECTORS – REQUEST 

ADDITIONAL DIRECTORS 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/04/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

   TO REQUEST APPROVAL TO APPROVE RESOLUTION TO ADD TWO ADDITIONAL DIRECTORS TO 
THE DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

     
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• CURRENT BOARD OF DIRECTORS TOTAL 9 MEMBERS 
• REQUEST FROM BOD TO INCREASE THEIR DIRECTORS BY 2 
• BYLAWS STATE:  

 

 
 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Mike Eason, Mayor______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   15     
 

 

 



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION R2021-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE TO 
INCREASE THE NUMBER OF DIRECTORS FOR THE DAWSONVILLE 

HISTORY MUSEUM BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

WHEREAS, the Dawsonville History Museum Board of Directors (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Board) is governed by their bylaws which were adopted in order to 
fulfill the objectives of the Corporation; and 
 

WHEREAS, Article III, Section 3.2 of the bylaws provide the Board of Directors 
shall consist of not less than three (3) persons and not more than twenty-one (21) 
persons.  The Board shall include as its Directors the acting Mayor of the City of 
Dawsonville (or the Mayor’s designed) and City Clerk for the City of Dawsonville (or the 
City Clerk’s designee). The number of Directors may be increased or decreased from 
time to time by a resolution of the City Council of Dawsonville; and 
 

WHEREAS, the current number of the Directors is nine (9), including the 
Mayor and City Clerk; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board voted unanimously at their September 21, 2021 Board 
meeting to request an increase to the number of the Directors by two (2). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the Dawsonville City 
Council hereby increases the number of Directors for the Board from nine (9) Directors 
to eleven (11) Directors and the candidates nominated and appointed will serve a term of 
three (3) years.  
 
SO RESOLVED this 4th day of October, 2021. 

 
MAYOR AND DAWSONVILLE CITY  

 COUNCIL 
 
 

By:        
       Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
 

       
Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 

 
             
             
       William Illg, Councilmember Post 2 
 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

             
             
       John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 
 
 
             
       Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED TO BY: 
 
 
       
Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk   

 



                                           
 

 

     SUBJECT:   EMERGENCY FIRE FLOW UPGRADE 
   

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/04/2021    
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:  
 
To obtain emergency approval for increasing pipe diameter along Perimeter Road south of Hwy 53 to the high 
school. Work will be done by our approved emergency contractor Townley Construction. Work will increase fire 
flow rates at all five hydrants currently serving the high school to above 1,000 GPM. This is time critical with 
the scheduled expansion at the facility to include an agriculture center and additional athletic facilities, and 
additional fire hydrants. This will improve fire flows throughout this area of Perimeter Road. Estimate from 
contractor is $131,690.00 including purchase of 1,680’ of DIP at a cost of $78,120.00. There will be an 
estimated $15,000.00 in engineering fees and permit fees to GDOT for boring under Hwy 53 and EPD for 
expansion of waterline. Staff have found a vendor to purchase the 8” DIP from at a savings of $24,835.60. This 
savings will be used to cover engineering and permitting fees. Funds will come from Enterprise Capital or 
SPLOST VI savings. 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES 
In 2018, the state law changed regarding required fire flows increasing the flow rates to a minimum of 1,000 to 
1,500 GPM. We have areas in the city that do not meet that requirement. We have an engineering firm 
developing water flow models. The fire flows at the Dawson County High School are the city’s top priority for 
increasing fire flows. Of the five fire hydrants serving that complex only one meets the required 1,000 GPM. 
See included fire flow model. 
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
1 – Upgrade fire flow to meet state requirement. 
2 – Fail to meet state requirement. 
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
Motion to approve emergency work not to exceed $131,690.00 for engineering, permitting and construction to 
upgrade pipe diameter and increase fire flows to meet state requirement. 
 
 

 
     DEPARTMENT:  ___Utilities_________________________________________________________ 

 
     REQUESTED BY: _____Jacob Barr______________________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #___16__ 
 

 

 

SPLOST VII













                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:  MAPLE HILL DRIVE DETENTION POND________________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/04/2021     ___________ 
 

 

PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:  
 
TO CONSIDER OPTION(S) PROVIDED BY LEGAL TO RESOLVE THIS REQUEST 
 

 
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• PRESENTED AT THE 09/20/2021 WORK SESSION  
 
Gary & Katelyn Gravitt and James & Julie Morgan have petitioned the city to perform permanent 
maintenance of the detention pond at 80 and 91 Maple Hill Drive. 
 
• Detention pond was constructed in 2003. 
• Morgan’s purchased property in 2003. 
• Gravitt’s purchased property in 2017. 
• Subdivision does not have a dedicated HOA. 
• Detention pond serves all 13 lots. 
• Planning Department searched council minutes and found no official dedication to the city. 
• Storm water Ordinance Chapter 107-195 allows the city to do maintenance work and issue a lien 

on property.  
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS:  
 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 

 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning______________________________________________ 
 

REQUESTED BY: David Picklesimer_        ____________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 17 
 

























                                           
 

 

     SUBJECT:   CHANGE ORDER – ALLEN STREET SIDEWALK  
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/04/2021    
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:  
 
Request Change Order to Allen Street Sidewalk Extension Contract w/Summit Construction which would 
include grading, construction of 40’ of 24” curb/gutter, construction of 4” thick X 5’ wide x 158’ sidewalk, 
installation of 5 concrete flumes, and grassing. Change Order not to exceed $43,068.00. There will be a 
savings from the original contract price totaling $1,820.00 for less traffic striping and pavement marking. 
Turnipseed Engineering has reviewed the estimate and approved the Change Order. 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES 
 
Summit Construction was the selected contractor from the bid process for this project. When the project was 
originally designed and bid out, this additional sidewalk was not included due to a concern that adequate 
SPLOST VI funding would be available. SPLOST VI collections have been more than anticipated allowing the 
funds for extending this sidewalk eliminating use of the street for a portion of the walkway. 
 
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
1 – Approve Change Order not to exceed $43,068.00 allowing construction of sidewalk off the roadway. 
2 – Not approve Change Order and 158’ of walkway would remain in the roadway as a striped/hatch marked 
walkway. 
 
Staff recommend Option #1 - approving Change Order making the finished product safer. 
 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
Motion to approve Change Order to Allen Street Sidewalk Extension not to exceed $43,068.00. 
 
 
 

 
     DEPARTMENT:  __Public Works__________________________________________________________ 

 
     REQUESTED BY: ____Trampas Hansard____________________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #___18___ 
 

 

 

SPLOST VI







                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:   NAMING PUBLIC ROAD IN CITY HALL COMPLEX 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/04/2021    
 

  
 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:  
 
TO REQUEST APPROVAL TO NAME THE CITY’S ROAD “PARK STREET” 
 
THE ROAD LOCATED BEHIND CITY HALL OFF OF ALLEN STREET CONNECTING TO MAIN STREET 
PARK ENTRANCE AND FOOD LION SHOPPING CENTER  
 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES 
 

• PRESENTED AT THE 09/20/2021 WORK SESSION 
 

• PRIVATE ROAD IN FRONT OF BOJANGLES IS REFERRED TO AS “BOJANGLES DRIVE” BY 911 
AND WILL NOT BE NAMED BY THE CITY 

 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: ___Bob Bolz, City Manager__________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #____19_______ 
 

 

 





                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:   ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT   _________________  
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/04/2021       
 

 

BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

 Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget: _____ Capital Budget: Other________  
 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____ Enterprise Fund: ____ General Fund 

 

 

PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: FIRST PUBLIC READING 
 

An Ordinance To Amend The City Of Dawsonville Code Of Ordinances Regarding Animals; Streets And 
Standards; Grading And Drainage; Zoning; Lot And Block Standards; Occupation Taxes And Miscellaneous 
Business Regulations; Buildings And Building Regulations; Stormwater Management; Fire Prevention And 
Protection; To Provide For An Effective Date; And For Other Purposes. (First Reading: October 4, 2021; Public 
Hearing, Second Reading and Consideration to Adopt: October 18, 2021) 

 
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
Amendments consist of the following: 

• Typo corrections. 
• Updating new State Regulation code. 
• Deleted the regulatory licenses requirement. 
• Updated design requirements for road speed design, cul-de-sac dimension, shoulder widths, storm 

drain types and sizes. 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS: No action required 
 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 

 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning______________________________________________ 
 

REQUESTED BY: David Picklesimer_        ____________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 20 
 



 

Page 1 of 3  

 
 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES REGARDING ANIMALS; STREETS AND STANDARDS; 
GRADING AND DRAINAGE; ZONING; LOT AND BLOCK STANDARDS; 
OCCUPATION TAXES AND MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS REGULATIONS; 
BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS; STORMWATER 
MANAGEMENT; FIRE PREVENTION AND PROTECTION; TO PROVIDE 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 03-2021 

 
WHEREAS, it is within the powers granted to the City of Dawsonville to regulate matters 

affecting the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of the City, and 
 
WHEREAS, regulating rabid animals with the City affects the health, safety, and welfare 

of the citizens of the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City find that the adoption of standardized land development regulations 

to govern the construction and development of streets, water and sewer systems, grading and 
drainage, lot and block standards and plat specifications is proper and appropriate as these 
activities may affect the health, safety, welfare, peace, rest and repose, and tranquility of the 
citizens of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City find that the adoption of standard 
specifications for water distribution systems, sanitary sewerage systems and roadway and drainage 
systems is proper and appropriate as these activities may affect the health, safety, welfare, peace, 
rest and repose, and tranquility of the citizens of the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Constitution of the State of Georgia provides in Article IX, Section II, 

Paragraph IV thereof, that the governing body may adopt plans and exercise the power of zoning; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Georgia General Assembly has enacted the Georgia Planning Act of 
1989, (Georgia Laws, 1989 pp. 1317-1391, Act 634) which among other things provides for local 
governments to adopt plans and regulations to implement plans for the protection and preservation 
of natural resources, the environment, vital areas, and land use; and 

WHEREAS, The City finds that the zoning regulations contained in this Ordinance are 
necessary for the purposes of implementing its comprehensive plan adopted pursuant to the 
requirements of the Georgia Planning Act of 1989; and 

WHEREAS, this Ordinance has been prepared and considered in accordance with the 
Zoning Procedures Act, O.C.G.A. § 36-66-1 et. seq., and 

Subject Matter: Zoning Ordinance Amendment 
Date of First Reading: October 4, 2021 
Date of Second Reading and Public Hearing: October 18, 2021 
Date of Adoption:  
 
 



 

Page 2 of 3  

WHEREAS, this Ordinance is necessary for the purposes of promoting the health, safety, 
morals, convenience, order, prosperity and the general welfare of the City of Dawsonville; and 

WHEREAS, Article IX, Section IV, Paragraph I of the Georgia Constitution authorizes 
municipal governments to levy and collect taxes and fees within their municipal limits; and 

WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Dawsonville is empowered pursuant to Section 
1.12 of its Charter to regulate the erection and construction of buildings and all other structures, 
and to adopt codes for that purpose; and 

 
WHEREAS, the General Assembly of Georgia authorized local governments to impose 

business and occupation taxes and regulatory fees in O.C.G.A. § 48-13-5, et seq; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that it is in the public interest to regulate post-
development stormwater runoff discharges in order to control and minimize increases in 
stormwater runoff rates and volumes, post-construction soil erosion and sedimentation, stream 
channel erosion, and nonpoint source pollution associated with post-development stormwater 
runoff; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Dawsonville City Council now finds that it is in the public interest to 

update and amend the existing Code of Ordinances in order to clarify certain provisions, correct 
typographical errors, and to revise certain provisions. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, The Council of the City of Dawsonville hereby ordains as follows:  
 

1. Ordinance Amendments 
The City of Dawsonville Code of Ordinances is hereby modified as provided in Exhibit 

A, attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein. 
 

2. Severability 
It is the express intent of the Dawsonville City Council that this Ordinance be 

consistent with both Federal and State law. If any provision of this Ordinance or the application 
thereof to any person or circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other 
provisions or applications of the Ordinance which may be given effect without the invalid 
provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared 
severable. 
 

3. Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage.  

 

SO ORDAINED this _____   day of ______   2021. 

 



 

Page 3 of 3  

By:        
       Mike Eason, Mayor 

 
 
       
Caleb Phillips, Council Member Post 1 

 
             
             
       William Illg, Council Member Post 2 
 
             
             
       John Walden, Council Member Post 3 
 
 
             
       Mark French, Council Member Post 4 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk  

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:14 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 4-95. Confinement of dogs or other animals. 

(a) The rabies control officer will maintain enforcement of all regulations pertaining to confinement of dogs or 
other animals.  

(b) The owner of any dog or other animal as defined in this article shall confine or cause to be confined such dog 
or animal as herein prescribed:  

(1) A dog or other animal, whether vaccinated or not, which has bitten a person or other animal shall be 
confined for a period of ten days following the date of the bite.  

(2) A dog or other animal, whether vaccinated or not, having signs suggestive of rabies shall be confined in 
isolation until its death or until its freedom from suspicion of having rabies is established and its 
release is authorized by the rabies control officer.  

(3) A dog or other animal not vaccinated and bitten by a known or suspected rabid animal shall be 
immediately destroyed, or if the owner is unwilling to destroy the exposed animal, strict isolation of 
the animal in an approved kennel for six months shall be enforced. One month prior to release, the dog 
shall be vaccinated according to prescribed methods.  

(4) Any dog or other animal, the rabies vaccination of which is current as evidenced by the certificate of 
vaccination and which is bitten by a known or suspected rabid animal may be revaccinated, confined in 
an approved manner for 60 45 days, and then released if no signs of rabies are evident.  

(5) Every dog, whether vaccinated or not, shall be kept in a quarantined area confined at the owner's or 
custodian's premises during the entire quarantine period, unless other provisions suitable to the city 
council are made.  

(6) Any dog less than three months old may be confined to the owner's premises or kept on a leash, 
provided such permission is granted by the rabies control office.  

(7) Any dog brought into the city for a permanent stay from outside the county shall be confined or on 
leash until vaccinated as provided for by this chapter, when the owner of such dog produces evidence 
satisfactory to the rabies control officer that such dog has been vaccination and a vaccination tag may 
be issued for the current vaccination year.  

(8) Any dog brought into the city on temporary stay not exceeding 14 days shall be confined or on a leash 
at all times, unless the owner or custodian of such dog submits evidence to the rabies control officer 
that such dog has been vaccinated in a manner and by procedures comparable to the requirements of 
this article.  

(Ord. of 12-7-2015, art. V) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:14 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 6.5-50. State promulgated rules and regulations. 

The following rules and regulations of the Georgia DHR, including all subsequent amendments, revisions or 
modifications thereto, and which are expressly incorporated herein, are hereby adopted and approved for 
enforcement as set forth therein:  

(1) Control of Rabies, Comp. R. & Regs. § 290-5-2.  

(2) Food Service, Comp. R. & Regs. § 290-5-14. 511-6-1  

(3) Tourist Accommodations, Comp. R. & Regs. § 290-5-18.  

(4) Land Disposal of Domestic Septage, Comp. R. & Regs. § 290-5-25.  

(5) On-Site Sewage Management Systems, Comp. R. & Regs. § 290-5-26.  

(6) Drinking Water Supply, Comp. R. & Regs. § 290-5-55.  

(7) Solid Waste, Comp. R. & Regs. § 290-5-56.  

(8) Special On-Site Sewage Management Systems, Comp. R. & Regs. § 290-5-59.  

(9) The Georgia Smokefree Air Act of 2005, Comp. R. & Regs. § 290-5-61.  

Copies of those DHR rules and regulations are available at the DHR website:  

http://rules.sos.state.ga.us/pages/DEPARTMENT_OF_HUMAN_RESOURCES/PUBLIC_HEALTH/index.html  

(Ord. of 7-6-09) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:15 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 2 

Sec. 8-22. Construction of terms; definitions. 

(a) Wherever the term "City of Dawsonville" is used herein, such term shall be construed to mean "Dawsonville, 
Georgia"; wherever the term "city" is used herein, it shall be construed to mean "Dawsonville, Georgia."  

(b) As used in this article, the term:  

Administrative fee means a component of an occupation tax, which approximates the reasonable cost of 
processing and handling the occupation tax and associated documents.  

Business means any person, corporation, partnership, or other legal entity which exerts substantial efforts 
within the city, engages in, causes to be engaged in, and/or represents or holds out to the public to be engaged in 
any occupation or activity with the object of gain or benefit, either directly or indirectly.  

Business location or office shall include any structure or vehicle where a business, profession, or occupation 
is conducted, but shall not include a temporary or construction work site which serves a single customer or project, 
or a vehicle used for sales or delivery by a business or practitioner of a profession or occupation which has a 
location or office. A temporary work site which serves multiple customers is included in this definition. The renter's 
or lessee's location which is the site of personal property which is rented or leased from another does not 
constitute a location or office for the personal property's owner, lessor, or the agent of the owner or lessor. The 
site of the real property which is rented or leased to another does not constitute a location or office for the real 
property's owner, lessor, or the agent of the owner or the lessor unless, in addition to showing the property to 
prospective lessees or tenants and performing maintenance or repair of the property, otherwise conducts the 
business of renting or leasing the real property at such site or otherwise conducts any other business, profession, 
or occupation at such site.  

Dominant line means the type of business within a multiple-line business that the greatest amount of income 
is derived from.  

Employee. 

(1) Except as otherwise provided in subsection (2) of this definition, "employee" means an individual 
whose work is performed under the direction and supervision of the employer and whose employer 
withholds FICA, Federal Income Tax, or state income tax from such individual's compensation or whose 
employer issues to such individual for purposes of documenting compensation a form I.R.S. W-2 but 
not a form I.R.S. 1099.  

(2) An individual who performs work under the direction and supervision of one business or practitioner in 
the terms of a contract or agreement with another business which recruits such individual is an 
employee o practitioner which issues to such individual for purposes of documenting compensation a 
form I.R.S. W-2.  

Engaged in business means doing or performing of any act of selling any goods or services, or soliciting 
business, or offering any goods or services for sale primarily in an attempt to make a profit, including selling or 
performing services of the character of a wholesaler or retailer, or being involved in any of the functions 
performed as a manufacturer, or renting real or personal property; all of the foregoing performed either as an 
owner, operator or agent of any business, trade, profession, or occupation within the city.  

Manufacturing means a person who, either directly or by contracting with others for the necessary labor or 
mechanical services, manufactures for sale or commercial use any articles, substances or commodities, including, 
but not limited to, the following: materials upon which commercial activities have been applied, by hand or 
machinery, so that as a result thereof a new substance of trade or commerce is produced; the production or 
fabrication of special or custom-made articles; the making, fabrication, processing, refining, mixing, slaughtering, 
packing, aging, curing, preserving, canning, preparing and freezing of fresh foods, fruits, vegetables and meats.  

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:15 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 2 of 2 

Nonprofit organization means an organization which compiles with U.S. Internal Revenue Code 501-a.  

Occupation tax means a tax levied for revenue raising purposes on persons, partnerships, corporations or 
other entities for engaging in an occupation, profession or business, if the business pays an occupation tax.  

Person wherever used in this article shall be held to include sole proprietors, corporations, partnerships or 
any other form of business organization.  

Practitioner of profession or occupation is one who by state law requires state licensure regulating such 
profession or occupation. "Practitioners of professions and occupations" shall not include a practitioner who is an 
employee of a business, if the business pays an occupation tax.  

Regulatory fees means payments, whether designated as license fees, permit fees, or by another name, 
which are required by a local government as an exercise of its police power and as a part of or as an aid to 
regulation of an occupation, profession, or business. The amount of the regulatory fee shall approximate the 
reasonable cost of the actual regulatory activity performed by the city. A regulatory fee may not include an 
administrative fee or registration fee. The city is not authorized to require any administrative fee, registration fee, 
or fee by any other name in connection with a regulatory fee, except an occupation tax, as defined in the code 
section. Regulatory fees do not include development impact fees and defined by O.C.G.A. § 36-71-2(8) or other 
costs or conditions of zoning or land development.  

Retailer means a person who sells to consumers or any other person for any purpose, other than for resale, 
any tangible personal property.  

Services means the accommodating or performing a duty or work by a person utilizing time or talents for 
direct or indirect remuneration.  

Wholesaler means a person who sells to jobbers or to persons, other than consumers, any tangible personal 
property.  

(Ord. of 12-3-2018, § 1) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:15 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 8-23. Regulatory fee structure. 

A regulatory fee, if any, will only be imposed as provided under state law on those applicable businesses. A 
regulatory fee may not include an administrative fee.  

(Ord. of 12-3-2018, § 1) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:15 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 8-31. When registration and tax due and payable. 

(a) The registration and occupation tax shall be due and payable to the city at the business license office of the 
city one calendar year from the date of original registration and shall be delinquent if not paid within 90 days 
of the due date. For any new profession, trade or calling begun in the city, the registration and tax shall be 
due and payable within 30 days of the commencement of the business.  

(b) Regulatory fees authorized by this article shall be paid before commencing business as a condition precedent 
for transacting business.  

(c) Regulatory fees may be paid after commencing business when:  

(1) The work done, or services provided are necessary for the health and safety of one or more individuals; 
and  

(2) The work done, or services provided have no adverse effect on any other person; and  

(3) Regulatory fees are tendered to the local government within two business days after commencing 
business.  

(d) The tax certificate herein provided for shall be issued by the planning director or chief financial officer.  

(e) Payment of an occupation tax shall not be required prior to the commencement of business. Payment of an 
occupation tax shall not be required as a precondition for the practice of professions and occupations as set 
out in O.C.G.A. § 48-13-9(c).  

(Ord. of 12-3-2018, § 1) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:15 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 8-35. Evidence of qualification required if applicable. 

(a) Any business required to obtain health permits, bonds, certificate of qualification, certificates of competency 
or any other regulatory matter shall first, before the issuance of a city business registration, show evidence 
of such qualification.  

(b) Any business required to submit an annual application for continuance of that business shall do so before the 
registration is issued.  

(Ord. of 12-3-2018, § 1) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:15 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 8-49. Applications of provisions to prior ordinance. 

This article does not repeal or affect the force of any part of any ordinance heretofore passed where taxes 
levied under such prior ordinance have not been paid in full. So much and such parts of ordinances heretofore and 
hereinafter passed as provided for the issuing and enforcing of execution for any tax or assessment required by 
such ordinances, or that imposed fines or penalties for the nonpayment of such tax, or for failure to pay regulatory 
fees provided for in said ordinance or ordinances, or failure to comply with any other provisions hereof, shall 
continue and remain in force until such tax, regulatory fee or assessment shall be fully paid.  

(Ord. of 12-3-2018, § 1) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:16 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 8-55. Occupation tax certificate not transferable. 

An occupation tax certificate and/or regulatory fee certificate shall not be transferable, and a transfer of 
ownership shall be considered in the same light as the termination of such business and the establishment of a 
new business. Therefore, a new certificate shall be required for each new owner of the business.  

(Ord. of 12-3-2018, § 1) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:24 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 2 

Sec. 102-19. Adoption by reference. 

(a) The following codes and their Georgia Amendments as the same are adopted and amended from time to 
time by the Department of Community Affairs, comprising the Georgia Minimum Standards and 
Requirements for Construction, Alteration, Etc., of Buildings and Other Structures, shall be enforced within 
the City of Dawsonville:  

(1) International Building Code;  

(2) International Fuel Gas Code;  

(3) International Mechanical Code;  

(4) International Plumbing Code;  

(5) International Electrical Code;  

(6) International Fire Code;  

(7) International Energy ConselvationConservation Code; and  

(8) International Residential Code.  

(b) Local amendments. 

(1) The lnternational Building Code shall be amended as follows:  

a) Section 704.5 of this Code, or such future sections as shall concern the same as the current § 
704.5 of this Code is amended to provide that:  

i) Exterior walls shall be fire-resistance rated in accordance with Tables 601 and 602. The fire 
resistance rating of exterior walls with a fire separation distance of greater than 50 feet 
(15,240 mm) shall be rated for exposure to fire from the inside. The fire resistance rating of 
exterior walls with a fire separation distance of 50 feet (15,240 mm) or less shall be rated 
for exposure to fire from both sides.  

ii) Any structures involved are to be constructed in a manner and with materials which will 
ensure that the structures will be in compliance with the fire rating standards for proposed 
spacing. Said structures shall be so constructed in accordance with the plans and conditions 
approved by the Building Official and the Fire Marshall's Office.  

b) In the event that future state minimum requirements exceed the protections provided by this 
local amendment, then the more stringent requirements shall apply and shall be enforced within 
the City of Dawsonville.  

(2) The International Fire Code shall be amended as follows:  

a. Section 903 of this Code which concerns Automatic Sprinkler Systems is amended to provide 
that:  

i) Sprinkler Standards.  

(1) All buildings 10,000 square feet or more under a common roof, any building 
over one story in height, or any building with an occupant load of 100 or more 
persons shall be sprinkled with an approved N.F.P.A. 13 system with the 
exception of the following:  

(i) Multi-family dwellings up to and including three stories in height shall be 
sprinkled with an approved sprinkler system modified to include full 
sprinkler coverage in all attics and breezeways.  

Exhibit "A"



  Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:24 [EST]

(Supp. No. 27) 

Page 2 of 2 

(ii) Single family dwellings.

(2) All buildings 6,000 square feet or more in an area under a common roof where
vehicles are pulled inside for the purpose of maintenance, repair, storage, or
installation of all accessories shall be fully sprinkled with an approved sprinkler
system except where vehicle bay areas in a building are less than or equal to
600 square feet, it shall be permissible to place up to six sprinkler heads off of
the domestic water supply in lieu of sprinkling the entire building. In so doing,
calculations must be performed by an approved sprinkler contractor certified
by the State of Georgia and such calculations must be shown on the plans
submitted for approval by the Fire Marshall's Office.

ii) All day care and preschool occupancies must install a sprinkler system in accordance with
N.F.P.A. 13 R.

iii) All home day care occupancies with seven or more children must install a sprinkler system
in accordance with N.F.P.A. 13 R.

iv) All group home care occupancies must install a sprinkler system in accordance with
N.F.P.A. 13 R.

v) Mixed Occupancies existing in the same building as a residential occupancy must install a
sprinkler system in accordance with N.F.P.A. 13 R. Where residential occupancies are
located above any nonresidential occupancy, there shall be a fire resistance separated
rating of not less than one hour.

vi) All structures installing a N.F.P.A.13 R sprinkler system must also install a sprinkler system
in the attic area if required by the Building Official and or the Fire Marshall’s office..

b) The fire code official shall have the authority to require construction documents and calculations
for all fire protection systems and to require permits be issued for the installation, rehabilitation
or modification of any fire protection system. Construction documents for fire protection systems
shall be submitted for review and approval prior to system installation.

c) In the event that future state minimum requirements exceed the protections provided by this
local amendment, then the more stringent requirements shall apply and shall be enforced within
the City of Dawsonville.

(3) The International Residential Code shall be amended as follows:

a) Section 302.1 of this Code is amended to provide that an exterior wall with a fire separation
distance less than fifty feet (15,240 mm) shall have not less than a one-hour fire-resistive rating
with exposure from both sides.

b) Any structures involved are to be constructed in a manner and with materials which will ensure
that the structures will be in compliance with the fire rating standards for proposed spacing. Said
structures shall be so constructed in accordance with the plans and conditions approved by the
Building Official and the Fire Marshall's Office.

c) In the event that future state minimum requirements exceed the protections provided by this
local amendment, then the more stringent requirements shall apply and shall be enforced within
the City of Dawsonville.

(Ord. of 6-7-2004; Ord. of 12-5-2005(4), § 2; Ord. of 3-3-2009, §§ 2, 3) 

Exhibit "A"



  Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:27 [EST]

(Supp. No. 27) 

Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 107-233 240. Article X -Penalties. 

Any person violating any of the provisions of this article chapter, or failing to comply with remedial measures 
described in a notice of violation by the date set forth for such completion, shall become liable to the city by 
reason of such violation for any one or more of the following penalties:  

(1) Civil penalties. In the event a violation of any provision of this article or the alleged violator fails to take
the remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or otherwise fails to cure the violations
described therein within ten days (or such greater period as the city shall deem appropriate), the city
may impose a civil penalty not to exceed $1,000.00 for each day the violation remains unremedied
after receipt of the notice of violation.

(2) Criminal penalties. The city public works director or planning director may request, at his discretion,
the city code enforcement personnel to issue a citation to the alleged violator requiring such person to
appear in municipal court or other court of appropriate jurisdiction to answer charges for such
violation. Upon conviction, such person shall be punished by a fine not to exceed $1,000.00. Each act of
violation and each day upon which any violation shall occur shall constitute a separate offense.

(3) Stop work order. The city may issue a stop work order which shall be served on the applicant or other
responsible person. The stop work order shall remain in effect until the applicant or other responsible
person has taken the remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or has otherwise cured the
violation or violations described therein, provided the stop work order may be withdrawn or modified
to enable the applicant or other responsible person to take the necessary remedial measures to cure
such violation or violations.

(4) Withhold certificate of occupancy/certificate of completion. The city may refuse to issue a certificate of
occupancy or certificate of completion for the building or other improvements constructed or being
constructed on the site until the applicant or other responsible person has taken the remedial
measures set forth in the notice of violation or has otherwise cured the violations described therein.

(5) Suspension, revocation or modification of permit. The city may suspend, revoke or modify the permit
authorizing the land development project. A suspended, revoked or modified permit may be reinstated
after the applicant or other responsible person has taken the remedial measures set forth in the notice
of violation or has otherwise cured the violations described therein, provided such permit may be
reinstated (upon such conditions as the city may deem necessary) to enable the applicant or other
responsible person to take the necessary remedial measures to cure such violations.

(6) Violations deemed a public nuisance. In addition to the enforcement processes and penalties provided,
any condition caused or permitted to exist in violation of any of the provisions of this article is a threat
to public health, safety, welfare, and environment and is declared and deemed a nuisance, and may be
abated by injunctive or other equitable relief as provided by law.

(7) Remedies not exclusive. The remedies listed in this article are not exclusive of any other remedies
available under any applicable federal, state or local law and the city may seek cumulative remedies.

(8) Recovery of fees. The city may recover attorney's fees, court costs, and other expenses associated with
enforcement of this article, including sampling and monitoring expenses from any violator of this
article.

(Ord. of 2-6-2006, § 8.2; Ord. of 12-17-2018, § 6) 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:27 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 109-17. Road classification and design speed. 

Road classifications and design speeds shall be requested by the developer and will be reviewed by the city 
during review of the preliminary plat.  

Road Classification  Classification Code  Design Speed  
Arterial - Primary  R010  50  
Arterial - Secondary  R010  50  
Collector - Primary  R020  45  
Collector - Secondary  R030  40  
Local - Non-residential  R040  30  
Local - Non-residential cul-de-sac  R080  N/A  
Local - Residential  R040  20 25  
Local - Residential cul-de-sac  R080  N/A  

 

(Ord. of 7-15-2019, § 1) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:27 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 109-30. Minimum requirements. 

On any existing street having a right-of-way less than the minimum which abuts a property being developed, 
one-half of the required width of right-of-way, measured to the centerline of the existing right-of-way, shall be 
dedicated at no cost to the city along the entire property boundary abutting the existing street.  

Additional street right-of-way width may be required to be dedicated at intersections or other locations 
fronting the property where turning lanes, storage lanes, medians, islands, or realignments are required for traffic 
safety and minimum right-of-way standards would be inadequate to accommodate these improvements.  

Minimum widths for construction (new streets or widening sections) are specified in the table below. 
Roadway width dimensions are back of curb to back of curb.  

Road Classification  Minimum Right-of-Way Width  Minimum Roadway 
Widths  

Arterial - Primary  100'  66'  
Arterial - Secondary  100'  52' 
Collector - Primary  60'  52' 
Collector - Secondary  60'  42'  
Local - Non-residential  60'  28'  
Local - Non-residential cul-de-sac  120'  50'R  
Local - Residential  50'  30'  
Local - Residential cul-de-sac (Dead end 
street less than 150 feet) 

100'  40'R  

Local-Residential cul-de-sac (Dead end 
street exceeding 150 feet)  

120’ 50’R 

 

(Ord. of 7-15-2019, § 1) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:27 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 109-34. Dead-end streets and culs-de-sac. 

All dead-end streets require the installation of cul-de-sacs.  

The maximum length of dead end dead-end streets and streets terminating in culs-de-sac shall be 1,500 feet.  

(Ord. of 7-15-2019, § 1) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:28 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 109-47. Cul-de-sac streets. 

Cul-de-sac streets shall be designed to meet requirements of International Fire Code (IFC2015), appendix D, 
including circular turn around.  

(Ord. of 7-15-2019, § 1) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:28 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 109-48. Shoulder widths. 

All streets shall have a shoulder, measured from the outer edge of the paved surface or back of curb to the 
inside edge of the ditch that is a minimum of 11 feet wide. The shoulder on un curb streets shall have a maximum 
slope of six percent. The shoulders on curb streets shall be at minimum 11 feet wide and maximum slope of two 
percent sloped toward curb. 

(Ord. of 7-15-2019, § 1) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:28 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 109-50. Specifications. 

(a) Unless otherwise specifically set forth herein, all of the materials, methods of construction, and 
workmanship for street construction shall conform to the latest edition of the state department of 
transportation standard specifications for road and bridge construction including all amendments and the 
latest edition of the city standard specification for roadway and drainage systems and the latest edition of 
the city standard details. The standard specifications and details can be obtained as a separate document 
from the city website (www.dawsonville-ga.gov) or from the city department of planning and zoning.  

(b) Street and alley subgrade shall be constructed in accordance with the following state DOT specification 
sections:  

(1) Section 201- Clearing and grubbing right-of-way.  

(2) Section 205 - Roadway excavation.  

(3) Section 208 - Embankments.  

(4) Section 209 - Subgrade construction.  

(c) Street and alley bases shall be constructed in accordance with the following state DOT specification sections:  

(1) Section 300 - General specifications for base and subbase courses.  

(2) Section 310 - Graded aggregate construction.  

(d) Street and alley surface and binder asphaltic paving courses, including prime bituminous tack coat, shall be 
constructed in accordance with state DOT specification section 400 - Hot mix asphaltic concrete construction.  

(Ord. of 7-15-2019, § 1) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:28 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 109-53. Sidewalks. 

(a) If the proposed sidewalk will be an extension of an existing sidewalk the proposed sidewalk shall be at least 
as wide the existing sidewalk and be at minimum five feet wide.  

(b) Sidewalks shall be provided along both sides of all roads within residential developments and along the 
entire length of the property where a road entrance is constructed. Sidewalks shall be provided along public 
streets for all multi-family, commercial, and industrial developments, and in such other locations as deemed 
necessary by the city for safe pedestrian movement. If the development abuts existing roads on multiple 
sides a sidewalk shall be required on the entire length of property that abuts existing roads 

(c) The sidewalks must be constructed to conform to the state DOT sidewalk standards.  

(d) Sidewalks shall be five foot wide and four inches thick.  

(e) Sidewalks shall have ADA compliant ramps and warning pads at intersections. The warning pads shall be 
screwed down and thermal coated.  

(Ord. of 7-15-2019, § 1) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:28 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 109-54. Driveways. 

All structures erected in the city must be served with access from a public street by an appropriate driveway 
in accordance with the specifications below. "Residential" shall apply to all residentially zoned property and 
"Commercial" shall apply to all non-residentially zoned property including, but not limited to, all industrial, 
highway business, institutional and commercially zoned properties.  

All driveways shall have a landing. The landing is defined as the portion of the driveway that connects to the 
public street.  

 Residential  Commercial  
Minimum width  9'  12' (one way entry/exit)  

24' (two way entry/exit)  
Apron width minimum  3' on each side  3' on each side  
Slope maximum  10%  5%  
Minimum landing length  20'  30'  
Maximum landing slope  5%  4%  

 

All driveways shall be constructed at a minimum of 3.5 4 inches or more of 3,000 psi concrete or two inches 
or more of asphalt on a compacted base. All culverts under driveways shall be 12 18 inches or more in diameter 
and covered with a minimum of four inches of gravel.  

All driveways shall be setback at least six feet from the side property line and shall meet the same elevation 
at the existing (or to be constructed) sidewalk. There shall be at least 20 feet between the entrances for a U-
shaped or similar driveway located on a single lot.  

(Ord. of 7-15-2019, § 1) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:29 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 111-31. Culverts and piped system design criteria. 

(a) Culverts in live streams, cross drains or serving 20 acres or larger shallare to be designed for a 50-year 
frequency flood event. The inlet area inundated by the 100-year upstream headwaterdesign event is to shall 
be contained in a drainage easement.  

(b) Piped storm drainage systems shallare to be designed for a 25-year frequency storm event. in non-residential 
areas and for a 10-year frequency storm event in residential areas.  

(c) Catch basins are to be spaced so that the maximum gutter spread is six feet or less for the designed 10 year 
storm event.  

(d) The minimum pipe size to be used as a culvert or in a piped system is 18-inch diameter.  

(e) The minimum velocity in a pipe flowing full is to be two feet per second. The maximum velocity in a pipe 
flowing full is to be 12 feet per second. The exit velocity of culvert and pipe systems is to be controlled and 
modified to prevent channel erosion or scour.  

(f) The absolute minimum clearance between the bottom of the paving base or subbase and the exterior crown 
of the storm drain pipe or culvert is to be one foot. A clearance of two feet is considered more desirable and 
should be achieved if possible.  

(Ord. of 7-15-2019, § 1) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:29 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 111-32. Storm Ddrainage piping under roads. 

(a) All stormwater and drainage piping under roads shall be reinforced concrete pipe that is at least 18 inches 
in diameter.  

(b) All stormwater drainage piping installed parallel of curbing within right of way shall be reinforced 
concrete pipe that is at least 18 inches in diameter.  

(c) All stormwater drainage piping with fifteen feet and greater cover shall be reinforced concrete pipe that is 
at least 18 inches in diameter. 

(d) All stormwater drainage piping installed in live streams shall be reinforced concrete pipe that is at least 
18 inches in diameter. 

(e) All stormwater drainage piping installed within a retaining wall backfill shall be reinforced concrete pipe 
that is at least 18 inches in diameter. 

 

(Ord. of 7-15-2019, § 1) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:29 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 112-4. Special notation required 

The city requires a final plat notation statling that a site plan must be approved prior to issuance of a building 
permit for lots which include any of the following:  

(1) Particular or unusual difficulties to meet minimum setback limits  

(2) Unusual building sites due to easement configuration  

(3) Possible floodplain encroachment  

(4) Storm water detention facilities  

(5) Zoning imposed buffers  

(6) Unusual or severe topographic features  

(Ord. of 7-15-2019, § 1) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:31 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 918. Approval required by appropriate body. 

Applications for amendments to the text of the zoning regulations, zoning map amendments, alterations or 
extensions of conditional zoning, conditional use permits, development within site specific zoning districts and site 
plans require approval by the governing body before development may be initiated or before such application is 
made effective. Applications for variances and appeals shall require approval by the planning commission before 
development may be initiated or before such application is made effective. Applications for certificates of 
appropriateness require review and approval of the Historic Preservation Commission by the planning commission 
and approval by the governing body before development, demolition or alteration may be initiated or before such 
application is made effective.  

(Ord. of 12-3-2018) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:31 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 1103. Prohibited uses. 

1. Commercial uses.  

2. Industrial uses.  

3. Manufactured (mobile) homes and houses moved from other locations (Except industrialized single-family 
modular homes).  

4. Animals which individually or in numbers, create a nuisance by noise, smell, unsanitary or visual effects. 
Animals such as dogs and cats are permitted when their number in relation to area does not create a 
nuisance to neighbors. Kennels for the breeding of any animal for sale are prohibited. Pet fowl or birds may 
be kept in cages under the same provisions. No swine are permitted.  

5. Any use not permitted in accord with the terms hereof.  

(Ord. of 12-3-2018) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:31 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 1203. Prohibited uses. 

1. Commercial uses.  

2. Industrial uses.  

3. Manufactured (mobile) homes and houses moved from other locations (except industrialized single-family 
modular homes).  

4. Animals which individually or in numbers, create a nuisance by noise, smell, unsanitary or visual effects. 
Animals such as dogs and cats are permitted when their number in relation to area does not create a 
nuisance to neighbors. Kennels for the breeding of any animal for sale are prohibited. Pet fowl or birds may 
be kept in cages under the same provisions. No swine are permitted.  

5. Any use not permitted in accord with the terms hereof.  

(Ord. of 12-3-2018) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:31 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 1305. Prohibited uses. 

1. Commercial uses.  

2. Industrial uses.  

3. Manufactured (mobile) homes and houses moved from other locations (except industrialized single-family 
modular homes).  

4. Animals which individually or in numbers, create a nuisance by noise, smell, unsanitary or visual effects. 
Animals such as dogs and cats are permitted when their number in relation to area does not create a 
nuisance to neighbors. Kennels for the breeding of any animal for sale are prohibited. Pet fowl or birds may 
be kept in cages under the same provisions. No swine are permitted.  

5. Any use not permitted in accord with the terms hereof.  

(Ord. of 12-3-2018) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:31 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 2 

Sec. 1404. Development regulations in general. 

All apartment, duplex, triplex, quadplex, semi-detached residences and townhouse developments shall 
conform to the following regulations:  

1. Site plan approval required. All multi-family developments including apartments, duplexes, triplex, 
quadplex, semi-detached residences and townhouses require site plan approval by the planning 
commission in accordance with all procedures and requirements established by the city.  

2. All site plans required by this section shall, at a minimum, contain the following information:  

a. Title of the proposed development and the name, address and telephone number of the property 
owner.  

b. The name, address and telephone number of the architect, engineer or other designer of the 
proposed development.  

c. Scale, date, north arrow, and general location map showing relationship of the site to streets or 
natural landmarks.  

d. Boundaries of the subject property, all existing and proposed, streets, including right-of-way and 
street pavement widths; buildings; water courses; parking and loading areas; flood plain; storm 
water detention; recreation areas; and other physical characteristics of the property and 
proposed development.  

e. Building setbacks, buffers, landscape strips, and common areas as well as topographic contours 
at two feet intervals.  

f. All accessory structures and locations shown.  

3. No multi-family development shall take place in whole or part without being served by both public 
water and public sewer facilities.  

4. Driveways and interior roads.  

a. An interior road(s) serving any multi-family development shall be paved and have a minimum 
width of 28 30 feet back of curb to back of curb. Parking on interior roads is to be regulated by 
section 609, off-street parking and loading spaces required.  

b. All interior roads shall have sidewalks installed on both sides of the street.  

c. Sidewalks and pedestrian ways shall connect to public streets and adjoining developments as 
applicable.  

5. Parking. Insofar as practicable, off-street parking facilities shall be grouped in bays, either adjacent to 
streets or in the interior of blocks. No off-street parking space shall be more than 100 feet by the most 
direct pedestrian route from a door of the dwelling unit it is intended to serve.  

6. Fire protection.  

a. All multi-family developments shall provide adequate fire protection in the form of placement of 
water lines, fire hydrants, sprinkler systems, and fire walls as required by local and state fire 
codes required for these types of structures.  

b. If a residential structure is located less than 15 20 feet from any property line, then local fire 
codes impose certain requirements.  

7. Buffer, landscaping, and open space requirements.  

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:31 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 2 of 2 

a. All multi-family developments shall conform to the following regulations. The following 
regulations are designed to promote the health, safety, order, aesthetics and general welfare by 
protecting against incompatible uses of land, controlling problems of flooding, soil erosion and 
air pollution, providing for a more attractive environment, assuring adequate open space, and 
reducing noise, night lighting, glare, odor, objectionable view, loss of privacy and other adverse 
impacts and nuisances through the use of buffers, landscaping and open space.  

b. Each development shall have a minimum of 25 percent of the development's total land area as 
landscaped open space. A buffer of at least ten feet in width shall be provided and maintained 
around the entire exterior perimeter of all apartment, condominium, duplex and townhouse 
developments. Utilization of existing trees and vegetation is appropriate for inclusion within the 
buffer, or when not found appropriate, shall be supplemented with approved additional 
landscaping and plantings.  

8. Service buildings. Subordinate accessory structures are permitted for maintenance, storage and other 
incidental uses supportive to the primary use of the property. Community service facilities and 
accessory structures are subject to site plan approval, for the convenience of the residents of the 
property. Such structures may include, but are not limited to, the following uses: facility management 
offices, community laundry facilities, and indoor community recreation areas.  

9. Maximum units per building. No more than six units shall be permitted to form any one single building.  

(Ord. of 12-3-2018) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:31 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 1405. Townhouse development regulations. 

All developments containing fee-simple townhouses shall conform to the following requirements:  

1. Lots. Each townhouse shall be located on its own lot of record, and subdivision plat approval shall be 
required in accordance with the city regulations.  

2. All structures will be constructed with a two hour fire resistive rated wall without an approved 
sprinkler system and or one hour fire resistive rated wall with an approved sprinkler system between 
each unit.non-flammable brick or masonry firewall between units and extending two feet above the 
roofline. A fire retardant product may be used in place of the firewall.  

(Ord. of 12-3-2018) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:31 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 1408. Prohibited uses. 

1. Commercial uses.  

2. Industrial uses.  

3. Manufactured (mobile) homes and houses moved from other locations (except industrialized single-family 
modular homes).  

4. Animals that, individually or in numbers, create a nuisance by noise, smell, unsanitary or visual effects. 
Animals such as dogs and cats are permitted when their number in relation to area does not create a 
nuisance to neighbors. Kennels for the breeding of any animal for sale are prohibited. Pet fowl or birds may 
be kept in cages under the same provisions. No swine are permitted.  

5. Any use not permitted in accord with the terms hereof.  

(Ord. of 12-3-2018) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:32 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 2011. Prohibited uses. 

1. Commercial uses.  

2. Industrial uses.  

3. Manufactured (mobile) homes and houses moved from other locations (Except industrialized single-family 
modular homes).  

4. Animals which individually or in numbers, create a nuisance by noise, smell, unsanitary or visual effects. 
Animals such as dogs and cats are permitted when their number in relation to area does not create a 
nuisance to neighbors. Kennels for the breeding of any animal for sale are prohibited. Pet fowl or birds may 
be kept in cages under the same provisions. No swine are permitted.  

5. Any use not permitted in accord with the terms hereof.  

(Ord. of 12-3-2018) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:33 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 2505. Alteration of structures or buildings. 

Prior to any alteration (including painting), demolition, removal of an existing structure or building in whole 
or in part, or new construction of a structure or building in the historical town business district, a building permit 
shall be obtained and a design review shall be conducted by the historic preservation commission in accordance 
with the city historical district ordinance. A certificate of appropriateness shall be issued by the HPC, whereas such 
alteration, demolition or new construction shall be performed in accordance with the design guidelines of the 
preservation ordinance.  

Nothing in this article shall be construed to prevent the ordinary maintenance or repair of any exterior 
elements of any structure or building; nor shall anything in this article be construed to prevent the construction, 
reconstruction, alteration or demolition of any such elements which any authorized public official shall certify as 
required by public health or safety.  

(Ord. of 12-3-2018) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:35 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 3603. Development permit required. 

A development permit based upon an approved site plan shall be required for any proposed use of land(s) or 
building(s) to indicate and ensure compliance with all provisions of these regulations before any building permit is 
issued or any improvement, grading, land disturbing activity or alteration of land(s) or building(s) commences; 
provided, however, that development permits for accessory structures for residential zoning districts shall not be 
required. Development permit fees are listed in the city fee schedule. Upon payment of applicable development 
permit fees and approval of a preliminary plat in accordance with all applicable provisions of the development 
regulations, development may begin on any parcel of land for an approved use within the zoned district as 
specified in this ordinance. All development permits shall be issued by the planning director or designee, who shall 
in no case approve a development permit for the use, construction, or alteration of any land or building if the land 
or building as proposed to be used, constructed or altered would be in violation of any of the provisions of this 
ordinance, the city development regulations or any other codes and laws. Development permits shall be valid for 
two years from date of issuance and shall thereafter expire. If work described in any development permit has not 
begun within 120 days from the date of issuance thereof, said permit shall expire, and further work shall not 
proceed until a new development permit has been obtained.  Permits may be reinstated up to two separate six 
month extensions. Prior to reinstating a permit, the planning director shall determine if a new plan review and 
plan revision is required 

(Ord. of 12-3-2018) 

 

Exhibit "A"



 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:35 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 3604. Building permit required. 

No building, structure or sign, except as specifically exempted by these regulations, shall be erected, moved, 
extended, enlarged or structurally altered, nor shall any excavation or filling of any lot for the construction of any 
building be commenced until the planning director or designee has issued a building permit for such work in 
conformity with the provisions of these regulations. Building permit fees shall be as set forth in the city fee 
schedule.  

All building permits shall be issued by the planning director or designee. In cases of uncertainty regarding 
whether a proposed building or structure conforms to any provisions within this ordinance and the City 
Development Regulations, the planning director or designee shall consult with the city engineer for his 
interpretation and ruling. Building permits shall become invalid unless the work authorized by it shall have been 
commenced within 90 days of date of issuance, or if the work authorized by it is suspended or abandoned for a 
period of six months or more, or if the work authorized by it is not completed within 18 months of date of 
issuance.  Permits may be reinstated up to two separate six-month extensions. Prior to reinstating a permit, the 
planning director shall determine if a new plan review and plan revision is required 

(Ord. of 12-3-2018) 

 

Exhibit "A"


	1. 10.04.2021 AGENDA City Council Regular Meeting 
	7. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CONSENT AGENDA
	7a. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items MINUTES
	7a. 2 09.20.2021 MINUTES.draft
	8. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda ANX-ZA C2100043 10.04.2021
	8. 2. 20210928155819541_Redacted
	9. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items RESOLUTION
	9. 2. Resolution R2021-05_ Georgia Cities Week 2021
	10. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items OPIOID LETTER
	10. 2 2021-08-18 Memo to Cities and Counties re_ Mallinckrodt solicitation(784860.1)
	11. 1. Executive Summary For  2022 MEETINGS CALENDAR
	11. 2 2022 Meeting Calendar Notice
	11. 3 2022 Meeting Calendar
	1 January
	2 February
	3 March
	4 April
	5 May
	6 June
	7 July
	8 August
	9 September
	10 October
	11 November
	12 December 2022

	12. 1 Executive Summary VACCINE INCENTIVE(002)
	13. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items PROPSED FEE CHANGES
	13. 2 Utility Rate Increases
	13. 3 Fee_schedule.
	Sec. 2-110. Fee schedule.

	13. 4  2021 Proposed Fee Schedule
	14. 1 Executive Summary For Budget amendments
	14. 2 Copy of budget amend2
	Sheet1

	14. 3 Copy of Copy of Financials Excel City of Dawsonville 6.30.21 (002)
	Splost Schedule

	15. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items DHM BOD
	15. 2 Resolution R2021-06_ Increase BOD at DHM
	16. 1 Executive Summary For Emergency Fire Flow DCHS
	16. 2 Supporting Docs
	17. 1 Maple Hill Dr Detention Pond Executive Summary Agenda
	17. 2 Maple Hill Drive detetntion Pond Executive Summary
	18. 1 Executive Summary For CO Allen St Sidewalk
	18. 2 Scanned from Summit Construction
	18. 3 email from gbt
	19. 2 map of road
	19.1 Executive Summary For NAMING ROADS
	20. 1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AGENDA Ordinance Amendment
	20. 2 DRAFT_03-2021 Zoning Ordinance Amendment with Exhibit A
	03-2021 Zoning Ordinance Amendment
	03-2021 Zoning Ordinance Amendment_Exhibit A
	Sec 4-95 Confinement of Dog
	Sec. 4-95. Confinement of dogs or other animals.

	Sec 6.5-50 State Promulgated Rules and Regulations
	Sec. 6.5-50. State promulgated rules and regulations.

	Sec 8-22. Construction of terms definitions
	Sec. 8-22. Construction of terms; definitions.

	Sec 8-23 Regulatory fee structure
	Sec. 8-23. Regulatory fee structure.

	Sec 8-31. When registration and tax due and payable
	Sec. 8-31. When registration and tax due and payable.

	Sec 8-35. Evidence of qualification required if applicable
	Sec. 8-35. Evidence of qualification required if applicable.

	Sec 8-49. Applications of provisions to prior ordinance
	Sec. 8-49. Applications of provisions to prior ordinance.

	Sec 8-55. Occupation tax certificate not transferable
	Sec. 8-55. Occupation tax certificate not transferable.

	Sec 102-19. Adoption by reference
	Sec. 102-19. Adoption by reference.

	Sec 107-240. Penalties
	Sec. 107-233 240. Article X -Penalties.

	Sec 109-17 Road Classification & Design Speed
	Sec. 109-17. Road classification and design speed.

	Sec 109-30 Minimum Requirements
	Sec. 109-30. Minimum requirements.

	Sec 109-34 Dead End Streets and Culdesac
	Sec. 109-34. Dead-end streets and culs-de-sac.

	Sec 109-47 Culdesac Streets
	Sec. 109-47. Cul-de-sac streets.

	Sec 109-48 Shoulder Widths
	Sec. 109-48. Shoulder widths.

	Sec 109-50 Specifications
	Sec. 109-50. Specifications.

	Sec 109-53 Sidewalks
	Sec. 109-53. Sidewalks.

	Sec 109-54 Driveways
	Sec. 109-54. Driveways.

	Sec 111-31 Culverts & Piped System Design Criteria
	Sec. 111-31. Culverts and piped system design criteria.

	Sec 111-32 Drainage Piping
	Sec. 111-32. Storm Ddrainage piping under roads.

	Sec 112-4 Special Notation Required
	Sec. 112-4. Special notation required

	Sec 918. Approval required by appropriate body
	Sec. 918. Approval required by appropriate body.

	Sec 1103 Prohibited Uses
	Sec. 1103. Prohibited uses.

	Sec 1203 Prohibited Uses
	Sec. 1203. Prohibited uses.

	Sec 1305 Prohibited Uses
	Sec. 1305. Prohibited uses.

	Sec 1404 Development Regulations In General
	Sec. 1404. Development regulations in general.

	Sec 1405 Townhouse Development Regulations
	Sec. 1405. Townhouse development regulations.

	Sec 1408 Prohibited Uses
	Sec. 1408. Prohibited uses.

	Sec 2011 Prohibited Uses
	Sec. 2011. Prohibited uses.

	Sec 2505 Alteration of Structure or Buildings
	Sec. 2505. Alteration of structures or buildings.

	Sec 3603 Development Permit Required
	Sec. 3603. Development permit required.

	Sec 3604 Building Permit Required
	Sec. 3604. Building permit required.






